
 

                         

 

 

 

                             

 

 

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 

 

 

June 28, 2023 

 

AGENDA PACKET 

 

11



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
AGENDA JUNE 28, 2023 

 
MEETING AGENDA – ADDITIONS/DELETIONS/CHANGES – Pages 3-5 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A. APPROVAL OF THE REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES MAY 17, 2023 – 

Pages 6-14 
B. APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN FOR  504 FOURTH AVE – Pages 15-26 
C. APPROVAL OF THE SITE PLAN FOR 306 AVENUE B – Pages 27-79 
D. REAPPOINTMENT OF A BOARD MEMBER TO THE EAB– Page 80 

 
PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS/AWARDS 
A. PRESENTATION OF A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING MAY 20TH THROUGH MAY 26TH, 

2023 AS NATIONAL SAFE BOATING WEEK – Page 81 
 
FINANCE/BUDGET REPORT – Pages 82-98 
 
DEPARTMENT AND BOARD/COMMITTEE REPORTS 
A. PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT – Pages 99 
B. BUILDING DEPARTMENT – Pages 100-101 
C. CODE ENFORCEMENT  
D. FIRE DEPARTMENT – Pages 102-105 
E. POLICE DEPARTMENT – Pages 106-112 
F. TOWN CLERK – Page 113 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
A. REVIEW THE BOAT RAMP CONCEPT PLANS– Pages 114-115 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
A. CONSIDERATION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 FIRE RESCUE DISPATCH SERVICES 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,600.00 – Pages 116-119 
B. CONSIDERATION OF THE CHIEF OF POLICE JOB DESCRIPTION – Pages 120-124 
C. CONSIDERATION ON LIMITING PLAN REVIEW SUBMISSIONS TO PLANNING & ZONING 

BOARD – Pages 125-127 
D. CONSIDERATION OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING FOR POSTING LEGAL 

NOTICES ON BREVARD COUNTY’S PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE WEBSITE – Pages 128-134 
E. CONSIDERATION OF THE 2023-2024 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER’S MEMORANDUM OF 

UNDERSTANDING – Pages 135-147 
F. CONSIDERATION OF SUGGESTED CHANGES TO THE LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, CODE 

OF ORDINANCES – Pages 148-149 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 
A. TOWN ATTORNEY 
B. TOWN MANAGER – Page 150 
 
TASK LIST – Pages 151-154 
 

2



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
JUNE 28, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
AGENDA 

 

NEW DATE 
 

The Town Commission will conduct a Regular Town Commission Meeting 
on Wednesday, June 28, 2023, in the Community Center 

to address the items below 
 

 

Commission Members: 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover 
Vice Mayor Joyce D. Barton  
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie 
Commissioner Corey Runte 
Commissioner Marivi Walker 
 
Staff Members: 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 
Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 
 
 

 
Notice: Commission discussion and possible action may occur during any Commissioner Meeting. The following 
sections of the Agenda are always subject to such discussion and possible action without further motion by the 
Commission: Changes to the Agenda, Public Hearings, Old Business, and New Business. 

The public is advised that members of the Town Commission may be in attendance and participate in proceedings 
of the board. Attorney General Opinions (AGO) AGO 91-95, AGO 98-14, AGO 2000-68. 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, THE TOWN HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC 
THAT: In order to appeal any decision made at this meeting, you will need a verbatim transcript of the 
proceedings. It will be your responsibility to ensure such a record is made. Such person must provide a method 
for recording the proceedings verbatim as the Town does not do so. 

In accordance with the Americans with Disability Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons needing 
special accommodations for this meeting shall, at least 5 days prior to the meeting, contact the Office of the Town 
Clerk at (321) 724-5860 or Florida Relay System at 711. 

 

 

33



1. Call to Order – Led by Mayor Hoover 
 

2. Roll Call  
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
 

4. Meeting Agenda – Additions/Deletions/Changes 
 

5. Consent Agenda 
A. Approval of the Regular Town Commission meeting minutes May 17, 2023 
B. Approval of the site plan for 504 Fourth Ave  – accessory structure 
C. Approval of the site plan for 306 Avenue B – new home 
D. Reappointment of a Board Member to the Environmental Advisory Board 

1. Kelli Hunsucker 
 

6. Proclamations/Presentations/Awards 
A. Presentation of a proclamation recognizing May 20th through May 26th, 2023 as 

National Safe Boating Week  
 

7. Finance/Budget Report 
 

8. Department and Board/Committee Reports 
A. Public Works Department 
B. Building Department 
C. Code Enforcement 
D. Fire Department 
E. Police Department 
F. Town Clerk 
 

9. Public Comment (Non-Agenda Items) 
After being acknowledged by the Mayor, members of the public should state their name 
and address for the record. The Commission encourages citizens to prepare their 
comments in advance. Each individual will have three (3) minutes to address the 
Commission on any topic(s) related to Town business, not on the Agenda.   
 

10. Public Hearings/Special Orders 
 

11. Unfinished Business 
A. Review the boat ramp concept plans 

 

12. New Business 
A. Consideration of the fiscal year 2023-2024 Fire Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal 

Agreement in the amount of $5,600.00. 
B. Consideration of the Chief of Police Job Description 

C. Consideration on limiting plan review submissions to Planning & Zoning Board 

D. Consideration of a Memorandum of Understanding for posting legal notices on 
Brevard County’s publicly accessible website 

E. Consideration of the 2023-2024 School Resource Officer’s Memorandum of 
Understanding 

F. Consideration of suggested changes to the Land Development Code, Code of 
Ordinances 
 

44



13. Administrative Reports  
A. Town Attorney 
B. Town Manager 

 

14. Commission Reports 
 

15. Task List 
 

16. Public Comment 
 

17. Adjournment 

55



Town of Melbourne Beach 
 

REGULAR TOWN COMMISSION MEETING 
May 17, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. 

COMMUNITY CENTER – 509 OCEAN AVENUE 
 

 

MINUTES 

 

Commission Members: 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie 

Commissioner Corey Runte 

Commissioner Marivi Walker 

 

Staff Members: 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Town Attorney Cliff Repperger  

Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Building Official Robert Bitgood 

Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Town Clerk Amber Brown 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

66



1. Call to Order 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 

 

Town Clerk Amber Brown conducted a roll call 

 

Commission Members Present  Staff Members Present 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover     Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton    Town Attorney Clifford Repperger 

Commissioner Sherri Quarrie    Finance Manager Jennifer Kerr 

Commissioner Marivi Walker   Building Official Robert Bitgood 

       Public Works Director Tom Davis 

Commission Members Absent   Town Clerk Amber Brown 

Commission Corey Runte      

           

3. Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 

 

Mayor Wyatt Hoover led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 
4. Proclamations and Awards 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover presented a proclamation recognizing May 15th, 2023 as Police 
Memorial Day and May 14th through May 20th as Police Memorial Week.   
 

5. Presentations by Special Guests 
 
A. Fiscal Year 2022 Financial Audit presented by James Moore 

 
Zach Chalifour, a partner of James Moore, reviewed the Town Audit and explained 
the four reports of the audit.  The first report is an unmodified independent 
auditors’ report on the financial statements.  The second report is on internal 
control and compliance.  The third report is a catch-all that goes over everything 
else that needs to be included in the audit.  The last report is looking at the Town’s 
compliance with state statutes regarding investment activity and policies.  Zach 
spoke about the ARPA funds and a change in the audit standards where they have 
to state how they approach their testing to identify risks.  Zach reviewed some of 
the financial statements.   
 
Further discussion ensued 

 
6. Boards and Committees 

 
 
 

77



A. Presentation by the History Center Board 
 
Laurie Simmons, Chair of the History Center Board, spoke about the history of the 
Old Town Hall Building.  July of 2026 is when the lease on the building would need 
to be renewed.  There are ten docents, and two open the building every Saturday 
from 11 am to 3 pm.  So far this year there have been 289 people that have come 
through.  Laurie spoke about events the Board has and read a few letters from 
people who have been impacted by the History Center.  She spoke about needed 
maintenance that includes the insulation in the attic which is falling, sagging soffit, 
tree trimming, some rotten siding, and the building could use a new coat of paint.   
 
Crystal Cain, a member of the History Center Board, spoke about the native plant 
garden.  They received a grant for the garden.  To date, they have accumulated 
almost 400 volunteer hours.  Had a plant sale in April.  In 1994 there was a 
permanent building prohibition on that land.       
 

B. Presentation by the Historical Preservation and Awareness Board 
 
Dayle Hinman Farrell, a member of the Historical Preservation and Awareness 
Board, spoke about the history of the Ryckman House, what the Board has been 
working on, the items in the house, and the early residents of the Town.  She 
provided a copy of a draft list of all of the items in the Ryckman House.     

 
7. Public Comments 

 
 Carlton Ray 
 518 Andrews Dr 
 
Carlton Ray spoke about the Pineapple Man Triathlon and being on the Melbourne 
Beach Rotary Club.  They would like to have amplified music starting at 7 am and 
instructions during the Triathlon near the pier or in the pavilions.   
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about several years ago the Town stopped 
allowing amplified noise in the park, so the Commission would have to be the ones to 
allow it.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about putting the speaker by the Ryckman House to be 
further from the home on the other side of the brick wall.   
 
The other Commissioners agreed. 
 
 Betsy Baird 
 River Rd 
 
Betsy Baird spoke about the fitness class instructor should be paid.  A neighbor told 
her the four-way stop at Ocean and Pine is unnecessary and there is too much money 
being spent on signs.  
 
 

88



 Chuck Cain  
 309 Surf Rd 
 
Chuck Cain asked if the Commission is aware that the County’s Comprehensive Plan 
does not allow high density, but several people have tried to get that restriction lifted.   
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about knowing about the situation and being open to 
making some effort to provide opposition to any changes. 
 
The Commission discussed sending a letter of opposition to the Brevard County 
Commissioners 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the previous conversation about 
changing high density was for one specific address.   
 
 Cindy Lagrassa 
 412 First Ave 
 
Cindy LaGrassa, Vice President of the Melbourne Beach Garden Club, spoke about 
the history and activities of the club.  The club is disbanding and would like to donate 
$1,500.00 towards a waterfall installation at Bicentennial Park.   
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie read a public comment she received via email from Lou 
Ann Apple.  The email was regarding the rumble strips at Ocean and Pine.  The noise 
from the rumble strips is disturbing people and animals.  It might not seem loud 
during the day, but at night it is consistent and very loud.   
 
Commissioner Sherri Quarrie spoke about finding alternative ideas to solve the issue 
such as speed bumps. 
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about how dangerous that intersection is.  For 
whatever reason people continue to run that stop sign.  
 
The Commission decided to remove the rumble strips and try speed bumps. 
 
 Frank Thomas 
 606 Atlantic St 
 
Frank Thomas spoke about Tom Davis being a tremendous employee for the Town.  
The Old Post Office and Beaujean house look good.  He spoke about potential Town 
mottos such as history matters, the Town that remembers its past, or the Town with 
tradition.  Many years ago the Beajuean house was in bad shape so he put together a 
group of people to raise money to fix up the house.   
 

8. Approval of the Agenda  
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve the agenda as presented; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

 
9. Consent Agenda   

99



A. Approval of the Regular Town Commission meeting minutes April 19, 2023 
B. Approval of the site plan for 415 Sixth Ave – New home 
C. Clarification on the motion that was made during the May 19, 2023, Regular Town 

Commission meeting regarding the proposed Bowman contract for a conceptual 
site plan for the boat ramp 

D. Appointment and reappointment of Board Members 

 Reappointment to the Historical Preservation and Awareness Board 
1. Jo Solley-Hansen 
2. Dayle Hinman Farrell 
3. Diana Beacham 
4. Gail Gowdy 

 Reappointment to the Environmental Advisory Board 
1. Karen Fenaughty 

 Appointment to the Environmental Advisory Board 
1. Brent Washburn 

 
Town Clerk Amber Brown asked for verbal verification regarding item C.  The 
motion was to review and consider the proposed contract, but it did not include 
approving the money. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the motion should be to approve the contract and 
the spending of $850.00. 
 
The other Commissioners agreed with Mayor Hoover. 
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented with 
the addition of the verbal approval; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; 
Motion carried 4-0. 
 

10. Public Hearing 
 

11. Old Business  
 

A. Consideration of Resolution 2023-01 – Historical Preservation and Awareness 
Board 

 

Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about the Historical Preservation and Awareness 
Board operating under a 2-year extension to the Resolution for the Board.  After the 
2-year extension, the Commission was to review the status of the Board and then 
decide whether to make the Board permanent or not.  At the February 15, 2023, 
Regular Town Commission Meeting a copy of the draft resolution was presented for 
discussion to officially establish the Board.  The following items were discussed and 
changed to what was in the packet tonight.  Changed the name to include Ryckman 
House, term limits changed from 2 years to 3 years, and increased the number of 
members to 7 plus 2 alternates.  The draft resolution was presented to the Historical 
Preservation and Awareness Board in March, and the Board did not have any 
opposition to the resolution. 
 

1010



Vice Mayor Joyce Barton asked why the name of the Board changed and asked for 
input from the Historical Preservation and Awareness Board. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about it being mildly confusing having 2 history boards.  
 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about including preservation and 
awareness in the name as well. 
 
Dayle Hinman Farrell, a member of the Historical Preservation and Awareness 
Board, spoke about not being concerned about the name but focusing on being able 
to be of service and the preservation of history. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about changing the name to Ryckman House Historical 
Preservation and Awareness Board. 
 
The other Commissioners agreed with changing the name to Ryckman House 
Historical Preservation and Awareness Board. 

 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve Resolution 2023-01 to change the 
name to Ryckman House Historical Preservation and Awareness Board; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

B. Consideration of Resolution 2023-02 – Amendments to Town Commission Rules 
and Procedures (Order of Meeting Agenda) 

 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the background of this item. 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about the updates to the resolution being 
the order of the agenda and then the Town Clerk sent an email out that included 
some technical updates. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the technical updates including the numbering of 
the bullets, using the word he or his, and capitalization of Town Commission.  He 
spoke about changing he or his to they, them, or their. 
 
Town Clerk spoke about the additional updates including Robert’s Rules of Order is 
on the 12th edition from 2020, the paragraph about the order of the seating for the 
Commissioners, and it references action items which was renamed to the task list. 
 
The Commission approved the technical updates. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about the major changes to this resolution are moving 
staff reports toward the beginning of the meeting so staff can leave earlier. 
 
 Frank Thomas 
 606 Atlantic St 
 
Frank Thomas spoke about there used to be a police report which was the highlight 
of the meeting. 
 

1111



 Chuck Cain  
 309 Surf Rd 
 
Chuck Cain asked about public comment being right before adjournment.   
 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton spoke about public comment still being towards the 
beginning of the meeting, but there is an additional opportunity for public comment 
that was added right before adjournment. 
 
Mayor Wyatt Hoover spoke about each voting item will still have public comment. 
 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to approve 2023-02 amendments to the 
Town Commission rules and procedures, and order of meeting agenda with the 
discussed changes; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

12. New Business 
 
A. Consideration of the fiscal year 2023-2024 Law Enforcement Dispatch Services 

Agreement 
 

Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about this being the yearly agreement for 
our police dispatch.  It increased by $549.56. 

 

Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve the FY2023-2024 Law Enforcement 
Dispatch Services Agreement at the cost of $18,868.11, an increase of $549.56 over 
the current agreement; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 
4-0. 
 

B. Consideration of the contract for document management software and document 
scanning services 

 

Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about him being involved in this to review 
the agreements.  There were funds already budgeted of $26,000.00 for document 
management and $24,000.00 for scanning services.  This contractor, MCCi, was 
awarded a contract under the National Cooperative Purchasing Alliance and is used 
by numerous other municipalities in the State of Florida. Under addendum 1 there 
is a one-time implementation fee of $15,750.70 and an annual support/subscription 
fee of $7,709.50 for a total cost for document management of $23,460.20.  
Addendum 2 is for scanning services in the amount of $22,002.04.  
 
Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about the Town’s old documents starting to 
disintegrate, so she spoke with other clerks who mentioned using MCCi for 
document management and document scanning.  This is a two-part agreement, 
addendum 1 is for document management and storage of documents.  Addendum 2 
is for the scanning of our historical records.   
 
Further discussion ensued. 
 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about a few edits that he will propose to 
MCCi. 

1212



Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve the Master Service Agreement, 
Addendum 1 and 2 subject to edits but not to include changing the price of the 
implementation fee of $15,750.70, recurring annual support/subscription fee of 
$7,709.50, and also changes made by the Town Attorney and approval from MCCi; 
Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

C. Approve/appoint Code Enforcement Magistrate, Paul Gougelman 

 
Town Attorney Clifford Repperger spoke about Paul Gougelman who used to be the 
Town of Melbourne Beach Attorney which makes him uniquely qualified to be the 
Special Magistrate.  The rate increased to $275.00 per hour and $125.00 per hour 
for paralegals.   
 
Further discussion ensued 

 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton moved to approve and appoint Code Enforcement 
Magistrate Paul Gougelman; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion 
carried 4-0. 
 

13. Staff Reports  
 
A. Town Attorney Report 

 
No additions 

 
B. Town Manager Report  

 
Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro thanked Commissioner Sherri Quarrie and Robin 
Davis for the ribbon cutting of the Free Little Library and thanked Finance Manager 
Jennifer Kerr for her hard work on the audit.  Next month the Ocean Ave update and 
boat ramp should be ready. 

 
C. Departmental Reports 

 
1. Building Department 

 
Building Official Robert Bitgood spoke about the legislative bill that would 
drastically change the building department did not pass.   

 
2. Code Enforcement  

 
No additions 

 
3. Public Works Department  

 
Public Works Director Tom Davis spoke about the tractor should be coming in 
next week, the pavilions at Ocean Park are now a solid color, most of the palm 
trees in Ryckman Park have been trimmed, and the boardwalk along Ocean 
Park will be starting at the end of this month.   
 

1313



Mayor Wyatt Hoover asked Public Works Director Tom Davis to get with the 
History Center Board regarding the maintenance of the History Center. 
 

4. Police Department  
 
No additions 

 
5. Fire Department  

 
No additions 

 
6. Finance Department  

 
Vice Mayor Joyce Barton made a motion to accept the finance report as 
presented; Commissioner Marivi Walker seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 
 

7. Town Clerk 
 
No additions 

 
D. Town Commissioners 

 
14. Action Items 

 
Updated 

 Lifeguard Coverage – Town Manager Elizabeth Mascaro spoke about Fire 
Chief Gavin Brown being the liaison for this and the Brevard County 
Commissioners are looking into different options  - June 

 Live Streaming – Town Clerk Amber Brown spoke about being in contact 
with a company that assists with RFPs and finding companies that do the work 
– July 

 Street Ends – Public Works Director Tom Davis provided photos and spoke 
about the street ends of First through Sixth which has large coquina rocks.  Fifth 
Ave is the best option. – June  

 
15. Adjournment 

 
Commission Marivi Walker moved to adjourn; Vice Mayor Joyce Barton 

seconded; Motion carried 4-0. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:57 p.m.   

             

       ATTEST: 

 

______________________  _________________________ 

Wyatt Hoover, Mayor    Amber Brown, Town Clerk  

1414



1515



1616



1717



1818



1919



2020



2121



2222



2323



2424



2525



2626



2727



2828



2929



3030



3131



3232



3333



3434



3535



3636



3737



3838



3939



4040



4141



4242



4343



4444



4545



4646



4747



4848



4949



5050



5151



5252



5353



5454



5555



5656



5757



5858



5959



6060



6161



6262



6363



6464



6565



6666



6767



6868



6969



7070



7171



7272



7373



7474



7575



7676



7777



7878



7979



1. Name: __________________________________  Home Phone: _______________________

2. Home Address: ______________________________________________________________

3. Mobile Phone: ____________________ E-mail address: ______________________________

4. Business Name: ________________________ Business Phone: _______________________

5. Resume or Education & Experience: ______________________________________________

(Use additional sheets if necessary or submit resume) 

6. Date of birth: ______________________ (to verify voter registration)
 (optional) 

7. Are you a qualified elector of the town?  YES  NO

8. Are you a resident of the town?  YES  NO

9. Do you reside in the town for at least ten (10) months of each calendar year?    YES  NO

10. Do you hold a public office?  YES  NO

11. Do you currently serve on a Town board?  YES  NO

If yes, which board? ___________________________________

12. Please check the board(s) you are interested in serving on:

□ Audit Committee

□ Board of Adjustment

□ Civil Service Board

□ Code Enforcement Board

□ Environmental Advisory Board

□ History Center Board

□ History Preservation and Awareness

□ Parks Board

□ Planning and Zoning Board

□ Police Pension Fund Board of Trustees

13. Why do you think you are qualified to serve on this board? _________________________

________________________________________________________________________

14. Would you consider serving on another board other than the one(s) you have selected above?
 YES  NO

Note: Persons appointed to certain town boards must file a financial disclosure form with the Brevard 
County Supervisor of Elections and Florida Commission on Ethics. If you have any questions, please 
call the Town Clerk’s office at 724-5860. 

Signature: ______________________________________ Date: ______________ 

TOWN BOARD VOLUNTEER APPLICATION 
     Town of Melbourne Beach 

507 Ocean Avenue 

Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951 

Phone: (321) 724-5860     Fax:  (321) 984-8994

8080

townclerk
Rectangle



Official Proclamation 
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, FLORIDA

NATIONAL SAFE BOATING WEEK 
May 2023 

IT IS HEREBY PROCLAIMED BY THE MAYOR OF THE TOWN MELBOURNE BEACH, 
BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, that: 

WHEREAS, more Americans are heading to waterways for recreation and relaxation as 
opportunities for water activities expand each year, and 

WHEREAS, it is essential that both novice and experienced boaters practice safe 
boating habits, which include participating in a safe boating course, ensuring that the vessel 
has proper equipment and that all passengers wear a life jacket, and avoid the use of alcohol, 
and 

WHEREAS, every year hundreds of lives are lost in boating accidents. The number of 
fatalities can be reduced and boating made more pleasurable if boaters would exercise 
knowledge, care, and courtesy necessary for safe boating, and 

WHEREAS, the United States Coast Guard Auxiliary focuses on boating safety with 
emphasis on safe boating education classes and vessel safety examinations, and 

WHEREAS, the South Brevard Flotilla 17-02, United States Coast Guard Auxiliary 
annually provides vessel safety examinations upon request. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Wyatt Hoover, Mayor of the Town of Melbourne Beach, by virtue 
of the authority of said office, do hereby proclaim May 20th through May 26th, 2023 as: 

NATIONAL SAFE BOATING WEEK 

in the Town of Melbourne Beach, and encourages all citizens who use our waterways to acquire 
the skills and knowledge essential to practice safe boating. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the 
Town of Melbourne Beach to be affixed this Twenty-Eighth day of June, Two Thousand Twenty-
Three. 

 day of   , 20 

 Mayor 

Attest: 
  Town Clerk 

81



  
 

1 
 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Finance Department 

 

Memo 
To: Mayor, Vice Mayor and Commissioners 

From: Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

Date: June 15, 2022 

Re: May Fiscal Year 2023   

We are in the eighth month of our fiscal year 2023. The target expenditure rate for May is 66.67%. All departments are 

managing their expenditures well at this time. All budget items highlighted in green are over the target rate but within the 

anticipated spending of that budget line. Items highlighted in yellow are being monitored, and items highlighted in red are over 

expended. Some budget lines are fully expended early in the budget year while other lines like salaries and health insurance are 

paid on a monthly basis. The total General Fund expenditure rate, year to date is 60.78%. The Departmental expenditure rate 

breakdown is as follows:   

 

Legislative:  46.89% 

  Executive:  57.53% 

  Finance:  74.85%  

  Legal:   59.95% 

  Comp & Plan:    34.08% 

  General Services: 64.26% 

  Law Enforcement: 61.83% 

  Fire:   43.12% 

  Code:   46.99% 

  Public Works:  68.90% 

  Grounds Keeping: 55.80% 

  Parks:   94.43%       

 

Discussion Items:  

 

The Town received Parking Revenue in May in the amount of $20,273.49.    

 

We are in the process of working with FEMA on Hurricane Nicole.  

 

 

8282



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FOR TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH
Balance As Of 05/31/2023

Fund: 001 GENERAL FUND
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
001-00-311.00.00 AD VALOREM TAXES 2,418,002.00 0.00 59,565.45 97.54
001-00-312.41.00 LOCAL OPTION COUNTY GAS TAX 93,000.00 0.00 40,416.24 56.54
001-00-314.10.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX FPL 248,000.00 0.00 90,305.71 63.59
001-00-314.30.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX WATER 52,500.00 0.00 21,749.50 58.57
001-00-314.40.00 UTILITY SERVICES TAX GAS 0.00 0.00 (52.63) 100.00
001-00-314.40.10 UTILTIY GAS TAX AMERIGAS 7,700.00 0.00 (22,357.94) 390.36
001-00-314.40.20 UTILITY GAS TAX SUBURBAN 1,000.00 0.00 20.28 97.97
001-00-314.40.30 UTILTIY GAS TAX FERRELL 2,800.00 0.00 982.81 64.90
001-00-314.40.40 UTILITY GAS TAX SAM'S GAS 0.00 0.00 (80.02) 100.00
001-00-315.00.00 COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE TAX 137,000.00 0.00 66,118.93 51.74
001-00-316.00.00 OCCP. LIC 16,000.00 0.00 1,800.89 88.74
001-00-323.10.00 FRANCHISE FEES FPL 190,000.00 0.00 88,853.73 53.23
001-00-323.70.00 FRANCHISE FEES SOLID WASTE 40,000.00 0.00 13,009.65 67.48
001-00-323.70.10 SOLID WASTE COMMERCIAL 13,500.00 0.00 4,691.29 65.25
001-00-329.20.00 BONFIRE PERMIT 900.00 0.00 900.00 0.00
001-00-329.50.00 LOW SPEED VEHICLE REGISTRATION 0.00 0.00 (700.00) 100.00
001-00-329.50.10 LOW SPEED VEHICLE PERMIT FEE 0.00 0.00 (550.00) 100.00
001-00-334.40.00 FMIT SAFETY GRANT 7,500.00 0.00 7,500.00 0.00
001-00-335.12.00 STATE REVENUE SHARING PROCEEDS 87,000.00 0.00 22,791.52 73.80
001-00-335.15.00 ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE LICENSES 4,600.00 0.00 186.30 95.95
001-00-335.18.00 HALF CENT SALES TAX LOCAL GOV 192,000.00 0.00 70,096.82 63.49
001-00-342.20.00 SAFETY INSPECT FEE VAC RENTAL 800.00 0.00 885.00 (10.63)
001-00-342.20.10 SAFETY RENEWAL-VAC RENTALS 800.00 0.00 800.00 0.00
001-00-345.10.00 VAC RENTAL APP FEE-INITITAL 5,000.00 0.00 3,400.00 32.00
001-00-345.10.10 VAC RENEWAL FEE - RENTALS 2,500.00 0.00 (3,800.00) 252.00
001-00-361.10.00 INTEREST ON INVESTMENTS 4,000.00 0.00 (10,579.64) 364.49
001-00-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 2,500.00 0.00 (256.57) 110.26
001-00-369.00.49 INSURANCE RECOVERY 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00

87.07

8383



Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 13 FINANCE
001-13-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (35.00) 100.00

100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMEN
001-21-312.52.00 INSURANCE PREMIUM TAX 45,500.00 0.00 45,500.00 0.00
001-21-337.20.00 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 65,000.00 0.00 16,250.00 75.00
001-21-337.25.01 STATE LE COMPUTER GRANT 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
001-21-347.90.01 SPECIAL EVENTS 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00
001-21-351.00.00 FINES - LAW ENFORCEMENT 7,500.00 0.00 3,415.06 54.47
001-21-351.13.00 PARKING TICKETS 600.00 0.00 250.00 58.33
001-21-351.13.10 ACCIDENT REPORT 100.00 0.00 (123.33) 223.33
001-21-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 0.00 0.00 (64.00) 100.00

44.30

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL
001-22-322.30.00 FIRE PROTECTIVE SERVICES 5,000.00 0.00 3,375.00 32.50
001-22-369.00.00 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
001-22-369.55.10 SHARED TRAINING 1,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 0.00

25.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEME
001-29-359.00.00 OTHER FINES AND FORFEITURES 800.00 0.00 (19,206.25) 2,500.78

2,500.78

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREATI
001-72-347.41.00 FOUNDER'S DAY 6,500.00 0.00 (705.00) 110.85

8484



001-72-347.50.00 FACILITY RENTALS 8,000.00 0.00 3,025.00 62.19
84.00

Overall Revenue Rate: 86.07

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 11 LEGISLATIVE
001-11-500.11.00 EXECUTIVE SALARIES 16,200.00 0.00 5,400.08 66.67
001-11-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 56,710.00 0.00 20,721.02 63.46
001-11-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 4,338.00 0.00 581.27 86.60
001-11-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 6,754.00 0.00 2,470.19 63.43
001-11-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 5,940.00 0.00 1,484.55 75.01
001-11-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 68.00 0.00 17.33 74.51
001-11-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 181.00 0.00 131.63 27.28
001-11-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,902.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-11-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 3,640.00 0.00 1,477.53 59.41
001-11-510.40.10 TRAVEL & MEETINGS - STAFF 2,788.00 0.00 902.34 67.63
001-11-510.47.00 PRINTING 5,015.00 0.00 3,027.23 39.64
001-11-510.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 800.00 0.00 316.02 60.50
001-11-510.48.40 LEGAL NOTICES 10,000.00 0.00 8,431.94 15.68
001-11-510.49.50 ELECTION EXPENSE 2,500.00 0.00 1,909.81 23.61
001-11-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 875.00 0.00 240.00 72.57
001-11-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 4,410.00 0.00 4,410.00 0.00
001-11-510.64.00 MACHINERY & EQUIPMENT 2,000.00 0.00 825.67 58.72
001-11-510.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 50,000.00 0.00 43,812.50 12.38
001-11-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 7,421.00 0.00 782.26 89.46

46.89

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 12 EXECUTIVE
001-12-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 143,243.00 0.00 58,801.37 58.95
001-12-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (80.57) 100.00
001-12-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 10,958.00 0.00 3,711.76 66.13

8585



001-12-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 17,060.00 0.00 9,025.43 47.10
001-12-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 4,436.00 0.00 2,376.20 46.43
001-12-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,561.00 0.00 11,624.50 54.52
001-12-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 749.00 0.00 221.36 70.45
001-12-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 458.00 0.00 336.70 26.48
001-12-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (853.00) 100.00
001-12-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 1,320.00 0.00 726.63 44.95
001-12-510.52.50 GAS & OIL 2,400.00 0.00 800.00 66.67
001-12-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 3,595.00 0.00 2,151.00 40.17
001-12-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 450.00 0.00 450.00 0.00

57.53

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 13 FINANCE
001-13-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 109,053.00 0.00 39,046.23 64.20
001-13-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 8,343.00 0.00 2,715.51 67.45
001-13-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 12,988.00 0.00 4,709.63 63.74
001-13-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 14,824.00 0.00 4,124.59 72.18
001-13-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 34.66 74.51
001-13-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 349.00 0.00 250.57 28.20
001-13-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 5,300.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-13-510.32.00 AUDITING SERVICES 26,600.00 0.00 (4,100.00) 115.41
001-13-510.32.90 BANKING FEES 6,900.00 0.00 (989.43) 114.34
001-13-510.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 1,200.00 0.00 214.75 82.10
001-13-510.47.00 PRINTING 180.00 0.00 180.00 0.00
001-13-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 60.00 0.00 60.00 0.00
001-13-510.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 800.00 0.00 686.00 14.25
001-13-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00

74.85

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 14 LEGAL COUNSEL
001-14-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 96,000.00 0.00 34,170.50 64.41
001-14-510.31.01 CODE ENFORCEMENT ATTORNEY 10,000.00 0.00 8,285.00 17.15

8686



59.95

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 15 COMPREHENSIVE 
001-15-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 20,000.00 0.00 13,184.95 34.08

34.08

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 16 FEMA - HURRICAN  
001-16-510.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (542.20) 100.00
001-16-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (325.55) 100.00
001-16-530.46.35 PIER MAINTENANCE 0.00 0.00 (4,150.00) 100.00
001-16-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 0.00 0.00 (2,376.56) 100.00

100.00

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 19 GENERAL SERVICE
001-19-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,618.00 0.00 2,618.00 0.00
001-19-510.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,020.00 0.00 1,475.00 63.31
001-19-510.31.11 SECURITY 3,308.00 0.00 (1,589.50) 148.05
001-19-510.34.10 JANITORIAL SERVICES 17,000.00 0.00 5,669.00 66.65
001-19-510.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXP 300.00 0.00 (8.00) 102.67
001-19-510.41.00 TELEPHONE 18,240.00 0.00 2,125.03 88.35
001-19-510.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 43,056.00 0.00 13,786.82 67.98
001-19-510.43.00 STREET LIGHTS 47,000.00 0.00 18,285.52 61.09
001-19-510.43.10 ELECTRICITY 38,500.00 0.00 21,853.48 43.24
001-19-510.43.20 WATER & SEWER 3,520.00 0.00 1,434.44 59.25
001-19-510.43.50 WASTE TAX SERVICE 3,300.00 0.00 1,031.09 68.75
001-19-510.45.00 GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 85,728.00 0.00 20,685.75 75.87
001-19-510.45.01 FLOOD INSURANCE 3,751.00 0.00 3,751.00 0.00
001-19-510.45.02 PROPERTY INSURANCE 69,960.00 0.00 21,991.50 68.57
001-19-510.45.03 AUTO INSURANCE 8,172.00 0.00 2,045.25 74.97
001-19-510.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 4,232.00 0.00 1,877.95 55.63
001-19-510.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 25,000.00 0.00 6,611.00 73.56

8787



001-19-510.46.36 PEST CONTROL 3,000.00 0.00 1,017.68 66.08
001-19-510.47.00 PRINTING 500.00 0.00 (50.13) 110.03
001-19-510.49.90 ADOPT AN AREA 1,500.00 0.00 1,067.14 28.86
001-19-510.49.98 CONTINGENCY 25,000.00 0.00 23,723.00 5.11
001-19-510.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00
001-19-510.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 11,000.00 0.00 4,532.83 58.79
001-19-510.51.10 POSTAGE 1,400.00 0.00 261.93 81.29
001-19-510.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 3,500.00 0.00 (570.25) 116.29
001-19-510.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 325.00 0.00 (70.03) 121.55
001-19-510.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 39,916.00 0.00 53,781.83 (34.74)
001-19-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 21,286.00 0.00 6,953.30 67.33
001-19-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 115,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

64.26

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMEN
001-21-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 627,879.00 0.00 198,217.47 68.43
001-21-500.12.50 HOLIDAY PAY 20,000.00 0.00 719.75 96.40
001-21-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 15,000.00 0.00 1,977.51 86.82
001-21-500.14.16 HURRICANE PAY 18,000.00 0.00 5,992.94 66.71
001-21-500.15.00 EDUCATION INCENTIVE PAY 6,800.00 0.00 1,287.50 81.07
001-21-500.15.01 FIRST RESPONDER 8,000.00 0.00 3,975.00 50.31
001-21-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 52,087.00 0.00 15,967.54 69.34
001-21-500.22.02 POLICE PENSION 206,912.00 0.00 96,912.00 53.16
001-21-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 5,217.00 0.00 1,736.69 66.71
001-21-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 210,119.00 0.00 145,863.51 30.58
001-21-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 2,700.00 0.00 860.17 68.14
001-21-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 1,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-21-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 16,853.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-21-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 2,179.00 0.00 1,430.66 34.34
001-21-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 725.00 0.00 65.39 90.98
001-21-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 17,785.00 0.00 (533.55) 103.00
001-21-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 3,324.00 0.00 2,285.03 31.26
001-21-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 5,388.00 0.00 3,730.67 30.76

8888



001-21-520.46.10 OFFICE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,500.00 0.00 (2,459.35) 144.72
001-21-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 0.00
001-21-520.46.16 RADAR CALIBRATION 700.00 0.00 600.00 14.29
001-21-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 17,000.00 0.00 (3,931.82) 123.13
001-21-520.48.00 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
001-21-520.48.50 CRIME PREVENTION 2,100.00 0.00 618.74 70.54
001-21-520.49.99 MISCELLANEOUS 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00
001-21-520.51.10 POSTAGE 150.00 0.00 66.38 55.75
001-21-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 7,000.00 0.00 (1,115.56) 115.94
001-21-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 8,328.00 0.00 6,587.04 20.90
001-21-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 40,000.00 0.00 27,361.07 31.60
001-21-520.52.70 MEDICAL 500.00 0.00 118.57 76.29
001-21-520.52.90 OPERATING SUPPLIES 4,320.00 0.00 746.08 82.73
001-21-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 935.00 0.00 100.60 89.24
001-21-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 6,400.00 0.00 4,750.00 25.78
001-21-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 18,400.00 0.00 (6,033.70) 132.79
001-21-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 13,837.00 0.00 5,365.43 61.22
001-21-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 13,479.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

61.83

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 22 FIRE CONTROL
001-22-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 88,036.00 0.00 31,325.10 64.42
001-22-500.14.50 STIPEND PAYROLL 38,689.00 0.00 16,715.47 56.80
001-22-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 9,695.00 0.00 3,524.98 63.64
001-22-500.22.01 RETIREMENT - ICMA 7,513.00 0.00 2,542.79 66.15
001-22-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 2,973.00 0.00 1,255.10 57.78
001-22-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 25,626.00 0.00 8,652.37 66.24
001-22-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 40.29 70.38
001-22-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 207.00 0.00 (415.00) 300.48
001-22-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 16,750.00 0.00 8,323.50 50.31
001-22-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 282.00 0.00 195.85 30.55
001-22-520.34.40 DISPATCHING SERVICES 5,400.00 0.00 1,500.00 72.22
001-22-520.35.00 PRE-EMPLOYMENT EXPENSE 2,060.00 0.00 1,623.00 21.21

8989



001-22-520.36.00 ANNUAL PHYSICALS 4,375.00 0.00 2,475.00 43.43
001-22-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 750.00 0.00 597.00 20.40
001-22-520.41.10 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 1,644.00 0.00 387.84 76.41
001-22-520.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9,152.00 0.00 2,350.61 74.32
001-22-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 26,100.00 5,770.34 10,898.64 36.13
001-22-520.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,000.00 0.00 861.49 13.85
001-22-520.48.55 FIRE PREVENTION 4,600.00 0.00 2,787.50 39.40
001-22-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 400.00 0.00 46.18 88.46
001-22-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 7,135.00 0.00 6,545.10 8.27
001-22-520.52.02 S.C.B.A. 1,975.00 0.00 435.14 77.97
001-22-520.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 2,925.00 0.00 2,415.19 17.43
001-22-520.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 1,000.00 0.00 133.31 86.67
001-22-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 2,000.00 0.00 1,808.89 9.56
001-22-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 6,600.00 0.00 3,827.25 42.01
001-22-520.52.70 MEDICAL 1,400.00 0.00 403.60 71.17
001-22-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 435.00 0.00 (11.00) 102.53
001-22-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 7,525.00 0.00 6,253.00 16.90
001-22-520.54.12 TRAINING MATERIALS 1,960.00 0.00 1,453.64 25.83
001-22-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 82,369.00 30,000.00 82,369.00 0.00
001-22-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 13,304.00 0.00 1,387.11 89.57
001-22-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 15,277.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

43.12

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 29 CODE ENFORCEME
001-29-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 14,898.00 0.00 7,971.63 46.49
001-29-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 1,140.00 0.00 572.58 49.77
001-29-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 1,774.00 0.00 1,345.04 24.18
001-29-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 21.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-29-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 230.00 0.00 230.00 0.00
001-29-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 48.00 0.00 38.34 20.13
001-29-520.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (1,000.00) 100.00
001-29-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 35.00 0.00 35.00 0.00
001-29-520.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 50.00 0.00 50.00 0.00

9090



001-29-520.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-29-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 125.00 0.00 104.81 16.15
001-29-520.51.10 POSTAGE 350.00 0.00 247.64 29.25
001-29-520.51.20 RECORDING COSTS 120.00 0.00 120.00 0.00
001-29-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-29-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-29-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00

46.99

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
001-41-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 207,196.00 0.00 81,447.25 60.69
001-41-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (2,859.38) 100.00
001-41-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 15,850.00 0.00 5,199.14 67.20
001-41-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 24,677.00 0.00 9,341.88 62.14
001-41-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 31,953.00 0.00 11,052.52 65.41
001-41-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 236.00 0.00 28.28 88.02
001-41-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 83.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-41-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 2,618.00 0.00 2,618.00 0.00
001-41-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 663.00 0.00 478.84 27.78
001-41-530.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00
001-41-530.43.10 ELECTRICITY 5,000.00 0.00 (64.48) 101.29
001-41-530.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
001-41-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 6,500.00 0.00 2,513.99 61.32
001-41-530.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 5,000.00 0.00 384.33 92.31
001-41-530.46.20 VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 9,500.00 0.00 3,261.60 65.67
001-41-530.46.30 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 8,500.00 0.00 1,947.16 77.09
001-41-530.46.31 MAINTENANCE OLD TOWN HALL 600.00 0.00 250.00 58.33
001-41-530.46.32 RYCKMAN HOUSE 700.00 0.00 (296.00) 142.29
001-41-530.46.35 PIER MAINTENANCE 1,500.00 0.00 (3,973.30) 364.89
001-41-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 7,000.00 0.00 (1,018.85) 114.56
001-41-530.52.00 UNIFORMS 3,125.00 0.00 833.68 73.32
001-41-530.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 1,000.00 0.00 (41.71) 104.17
001-41-530.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 4,750.00 0.00 (522.23) 110.99

9191



001-41-530.52.25 TOOL RENTALS 3,500.00 0.00 3,147.24 10.08
001-41-530.52.50 GAS & OIL 5,800.00 0.00 2,594.83 55.26
001-41-530.53.10 STREET REPAIR 7,500.00 0.00 414.47 94.47
001-41-530.53.20 STREET SIGNS 8,500.00 0.00 1,991.64 76.57
001-41-530.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 1,500.00 0.00 962.20 35.85
001-41-530.57.25 WELDING 500.00 0.00 321.54 35.69
001-41-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-41-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 16,927.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

68.90

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 42 GROUNDS KEEPIN
001-42-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (408.53) 100.00
001-42-530.34.91 LANDSCAPING 22,300.00 0.00 16,767.58 24.81
001-42-530.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,000.00 0.00 846.30 15.37
001-42-530.46.15 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 2,111.47 15.54
001-42-530.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 25,910.00 0.00 15,457.25 40.34
001-42-530.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 2,000.00 0.00 (1,975.00) 198.75
001-42-530.52.00 UNIFORMS 3,125.00 0.00 3,031.60 2.99
001-42-530.52.05 PROTECTIVE GEAR 575.00 0.00 575.00 0.00
001-42-530.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 500.00 0.00 (117.86) 123.57
001-42-530.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00
001-42-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 (10,859.00) 100.00

55.80

Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREAT
001-72-570.48.10 FOUNDER'S DAY 7,000.00 0.00 (157.81) 102.25
001-72-570.48.50 MOVIES IN THE PARK 1,800.00 0.00 390.00 78.33
001-72-570.48.52 FOURTH OF JULY 500.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
001-72-570.48.53 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS PARK 3,000.00 0.00 (1,898.02) 163.27
001-72-570.48.60 EASTER EGG HUNT 200.00 0.00 200.00 0.00
001-72-570.48.90 RECREATION PROGRAMS 5,000.00 0.00 4,380.02 12.40
001-72-570.63.01 TENNIS COURT EXPEDITURES 500.00 0.00 (223.97) 144.79

9292



001-72-570.63.02 BBALL & VBALL COURTS 500.00 0.00 (175.79) 135.16
001-72-570.63.05 BOCCE COURT EXPENDITURES 500.00 0.00 430.02 14.00
001-72-570.63.06 PLAYGROUND 0.00 0.00 (593.89) 100.00
001-72-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 32,600.00 0.00 525.00 98.39

94.43

Overall Expenditure Rate: 60.78

Fund: 104 ENVIRONMENTAL ADVIS  
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 00 
104-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 4,904.00 0.00 4,904.00 0.00
104-00-337.90.01 OTHER GRANTS 568.00 0.00 568.00 0.00
104-00-366.47.00 DONATIONS 5,000.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
104-00-381.00.00 TRANSFERS IN 5,374.00 0.00 5,374.00 0.00

31.55

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 72 PARKS & RECREAT
104-72-570.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
104-72-570.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 0.00 0.00 (106.93) 100.00
104-72-570.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (65.00) 100.00
104-72-570.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 960.00 0.00 517.03 46.14
104-72-570.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00 0.00 (81.98) 100.00
104-72-570.52.50 GAS FOR COMPOSTING TRUCK 1,092.00 0.00 386.20 64.63
104-72-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,000.00 0.00 5,363.09 32.96

33.52

Fund: 125 BUILDING DEPT
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

9393



125-24-322.00.00 BUILDING PERMITS 160,000.00 0.00 (5,670.82) 103.54
125-24-322.10.00 ZONING PLAN REVIEW 1,000.00 0.00 (1,343.75) 234.38
125-24-322.10.10 SITE PLAN REVIEW P&Z 12,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 50.00
125-24-322.20.00 BUILDING PLAN REVIEW 12,000.00 0.00 11,150.00 7.08
125-24-322.31.00 ADVERTISING COSTS 250.00 0.00 250.00 0.00
125-24-322.31.20 P&Z ADVERTISING 100.00 0.00 (207.15) 307.15
125-24-329.00.00 OTHER LICENSES, FEES & PERMITS 700.00 0.00 (9,043.50) 1,391.93
125-24-329.00.10 BOA VARIANCE FEES 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00
125-24-354.00.00 LOCAL ORDINANCE VIOLATION 8,000.00 0.00 (1,689.84) 121.12

99.26

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

125-24-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 141,440.00 0.00 47,118.35 66.69
125-24-500.14.00 SALARIES OVERTIME 0.00 0.00 (820.50) 100.00
125-24-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 10,820.16 0.00 3,660.26 66.17
125-24-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 16,845.50 0.00 5,496.62 67.37
125-24-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 27,083.00 0.00 13,752.20 49.22
125-24-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 136.00 0.00 25.65 81.14
125-24-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 42.00 0.00 42.00 0.00
125-24-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 655.00 0.00 655.00 0.00
125-24-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 452.61 0.00 304.93 32.63
125-24-520.40.00 TRAVEL & MEETINGS 300.00 0.00 300.00 0.00
125-24-520.51.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES 500.00 0.00 (420.90) 184.18
125-24-520.51.10 POSTAGE 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00
125-24-520.52.00 UNIFORMS 260.00 0.00 19.08 92.66
125-24-520.52.20 TOOLS & HARDWARE 75.00 0.00 75.00 0.00
125-24-520.52.50 GAS & OIL 500.00 0.00 140.05 71.99
125-24-520.54.00 DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,200.00 0.00 0.00 100.00
125-24-520.54.10 TRAINING & SCHOOLS 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00
125-24-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 16,000.00 0.00 2,284.95 85.72
125-24-543.00.00 LICENSES & FEES 350.00 0.00 237.05 32.27

66.70

9494



Fund: 145 AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 00 
145-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 1,643,004.81 0.00 1,643,004.81 0.00

0.00

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

145-00-510.32.00 AUDITING SERVICES 14,710.00 0.00 11,520.00 21.69
145-00-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 28,304.00 0.00 28,304.00 0.00

7.42

Department: 21 LAW ENFORCEMEN
145-21-520.64.01 Capital Outlay 0.00 93,436.00 (93,436.00) 0.00

0.00

Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
145-41-530.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00
145-41-530.31.21 ENGINEERING SERVICES 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00
145-41-530.31.21-001 ENGINEERING SERVICES 0.00 0.00 (566.32) 100.00
145-41-530.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 1,460,662.75 0.00 1,460,272.75 0.03
145-41-530.64.01-001 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.00 (574,032.75) 100.00

38.65

Fund: 172 OCEAN PARK PARKING F
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 00 
172-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 62,536.22 0.00 62,536.22 0.00

0.00
Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
172-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 15,000.00 0.00 7,250.00 51.67

9595



172-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 98,000.00 0.00 49,766.05 49.22
49.54

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

172-75-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 34,000.00 0.00 13,538.41 60.18
172-75-575.31.02 LIFEGUARD CONTRACT 21,945.00 0.00 13,667.06 37.72
172-75-575.32.90 BANKING FEES 5,500.00 0.00 2,717.99 50.58
172-75-575.34.10 JANITORIAL CLEANING 1,800.00 0.00 450.00 75.00
172-75-575.34.91 LANDSCAPING 3,500.00 0.00 3,334.29 4.73
172-75-575.41.10 IPS COMMUNICATIONS FEE 4,020.00 0.00 692.33 82.78
172-75-575.43.10 ELECTRICITY 2,700.00 0.00 979.16 63.73
172-75-575.43.20 WATER & SEWER 1,700.00 0.00 1,055.82 37.89
172-75-575.43.50 DUMP SERVICE 660.00 0.00 660.00 0.00
172-75-575.46.12 MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES 1,500.00 0.00 227.66 84.82
172-75-575.46.31 BUILDING MAINT RESTROOMS 1,200.00 0.00 1,084.79 9.60
172-75-575.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 3,000.00 0.00 382.95 87.24
172-75-575.46.41 MOWING CONTRACT 9,000.00 0.00 8,066.25 10.38
172-75-575.46.43 TREE EXPENSE 500.00 0.00 500.00 0.00
172-75-575.52.10 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 350.00 0.00 350.00 0.00
172-75-575.53.15 PARKING LOT REPAIRS 1,500.00 0.00 683.91 54.41
172-75-575.53.20 SIGNS 300.00 0.00 (1,457.64) 585.88
172-75-575.63.03 VOLLEYBALL COURT 2,000.00 0.00 844.59 57.77
172-75-575.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 16,000.00 0.00 15,932.80 0.42
172-75-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 1,400.00 0.00 1,400.00 0.00
172-75-764.10.00 Filing Fee Clerk-Parking Ticke 30.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

0.00 42.63

Fund: 175 RYCKMAN CROSSOVER P  
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 00 
175-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 97,998.78 0.00 97,998.78 0.00

0.00

9696



Department: 75 TOWN PARKS
175-75-342.10.00 PARKING TICKET REVENUE 9,500.00 0.00 7,250.00 23.68
175-75-344.50.00 PARKING METER REVENUE 60,500.00 0.00 7,519.40 87.57
175-75-344.50.10 PARK PASS REVENUE 3,000.00 0.00 1,000.00 66.67

78.40

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt

175-75-500.12.00 REGULAR SALARIES 320.00 0.00 320.00 0.00
175-75-500.21.00 FICA TAXES - EMPLOYER PORTION 2,625.00 0.00 1,043.60 60.24
175-75-500.22.20 RETIREMENT TOWN EMPLOYEES 4,088.00 0.00 1,602.35 60.80
175-75-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 7,967.00 0.00 3,499.85 56.07
175-75-575.32.90 BANKING FEES 2,000.00 0.00 (193.25) 109.66
175-75-575.32.95 IPS BANKING FEE 4,200.00 0.00 4,200.00 0.00
175-75-575.41.15 IPS COMMUNICATION FEE 2,500.00 0.00 742.01 70.32
175-75-575.50.00 RECREATION PROGRAMS 10,500.00 0.00 4,850.00 53.81
175-75-581.00.00 TRANSFER OUT 31,500.00 0.00 31,500.00 0.00

27.60

Fund: 351 BEAUTIFICATION
Revenues Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 00 
351-00-271.00.99 CARRY FORWARD 45,665.09 0.00 45,665.09 0.00
351-00-366.19.00 TOWN HALL DONATIONS 0.00 0.00 (1,500.00) 100.00
351-00-381.00.00 TRANSFERS IN 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00

1.98

Expenditures Description ORIGINAL BUDGET Encumbrance Available % Bdgt
Department: 41 PUBLIC WORKS
351-41-500.23.01 HEALTH INSURANCE 2,755.00 0.00 74.71 97.29
351-41-500.23.02 LIFE INSURANCE 68.00 0.00 22.96 66.24
351-41-500.23.10 STATUTORY AD&D 21.00 0.00 0.00 100.00

9797



351-41-500.24.00 WORKERS COMPENSATION 653.00 0.00 653.00 0.00
351-41-500.25.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 110.00 0.00 78.37 28.75
351-41-570.31.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 15,000.00 0.00 9,737.50 35.08
351-41-570.34.91 LANDSCAPING 30,000.00 0.00 28,300.00 5.67
351-41-570.43.15 ELECTRICAL WORK 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00
351-41-570.46.40 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 2,500.00 0.00 1,108.84 55.65
351-41-570.53.20 STREET SIGNS 1,500.00 0.00 (10,022.65) 768.18
351-41-570.64.01 CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 7,597.00 (7,597.00) 0.00

40.74

9898



Public Works Activities 

May 2023 

 

Installation of all new cross beams completed on Pier – Land and Sea 

Ocean Park boardwalk in progress 

Extended boardwalk pathway through Ryckman Park 

New AC condenser installed for upstairs Town Hall – Coast Air 

Mulched areas Town Hall/ Ryckman Park/Bicentennial – 

Removed graffiti on the pier 

Removed rumble sticks and replaced with speed bump on Ocean 

Repaired door to generator – replacement would have been few thousand 

Removed a concrete slab Ryckman Park 

Painted all the pavilions at Ocean Park/pressure washed slabs 

Trees trimmed that was hanging over sidewalks various locations 

Tested full load on generator pre storm season and fire inspection required 

Trimmed around signs throughout Town 

Repaired pothole 300 block Riverside 

Irrigation maintenance/repairs – ongoing 

Trimmed palms in Ryckman 

Repaired north bocci ball court 

Built and placed a small seating bench at tennis courts 

Pressure washed playground 

Trimmed tree hanging on to Ryckman House roof 

Installed new LED sign lights front of Town Hall 

Founders day prep clean up 

9999



100100



101101



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

Town of Melbourne Beach 

Fire Department 

 

MONTHLY REPORT - MAY 2023 
 

 
 
Incident Response 

For the month of May 2023, the Melbourne Beach Volunteer Fire Department 

responded to 20 calls for service.  The average number of responding volunteer 

personnel per paged out call for the month was 10.    

Breakdown: 

 6 Fire/Rescue 911 Calls (Paged out) 

 2 Assist Other Agency (MPD & MBPD) 

 1 Special Event Standby (Founders Day) 

 2 EMS Assists 

 2 False Calls  

 1 Public Service Incident  

 6 Fire Inspections 

 

 

Department Membership 

 1 Fire Chief (Full-Time) 

 1 Maintenance Technician (Part-Time) 

 23 Certified Volunteer Firefighters 

 8 Support Services Volunteers 

 1 Administrative Volunteer 

 1 Volunteer Fire Chaplain  

 1 Probationary Volunteer 

 

 

 

 

102102



Page 2 of 2 

 

Notable Incidents 

 05/01/2023 – Melbourne Beach Fire-1 first on scene for vehicle vs. motorcycle 
accident in Melbourne.  Fire-1 assisted with traffic control and patient 
assessment (1x Trauma Alert).  Turned over to Melbourne Fire/Police upon their 
arrival.   

 05/01/2023 – Marine-58 assisted MBPD with unsecured derelict vessel 
investigation in the Indian River. 

 05/06/2023 – During Founders Day, Engine 58 & Fire-1 responded to Ocean & 
Orange for vehicle vs. pedestrian.  1 patient transported to hospital in stable 
condition. 

 05/07/2023 – Engine 58, District 58, & Fire-1 responded mutual-aid to Indian 
Harbour Beach for confirmed Structure Fire. 

 

 

Notable Events 

The Department provided standby fire & EMS coverage for the Founders Day event in 

Melbourne Beach.  During the event, the Department responded to 2 minor medical incidents 

(both refusals), 1 vehicle vs. fire hydrant incident, and 1 vehicle vs. pedestrian incident.   

Chief Brown along with multiple Department volunteers started teaching a Fire Prevention Merit 

Badge course for local Boy Scout of America Troop 330.  The Merit Badge course will be taught 

over 3-4 evenings and will teach the scouts many valuable skills pertaining to fire safety.       

The beach wheelchair was rented out multiple times during the month of May.  Many residents 

and visitors commented on how nice it was for the Town to have this equipment available free of 

charge to rent for those with mobility challenges. 

Fire Department leadership continues to work with the Volunteer Firefighters Association Board 

of Directors and multiple marine contractors to discuss potential ideas and funding options for 

the construction of a dock & boat lift for the Fire Department’s marine rescue boat.  While the 

community has been overwhelmingly supportive about the concept, feedback and concerns 

about the location are being taken into consideration and alternative solutions are being 

investigated. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

103103



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 6/23/2023 10:35:24 AM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Incident Address and Type for Date Range (Landscape)

INCIDENT # DATE LOCATION 
TYPE ADDRESS INCIDENT TYPE ALARM CLEARED

SCENE
2023-68 05/01/2023 306 2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 05/01/2023 10:39 05/01/2023 12:25

2023-69 05/01/2023 Intersection  S Harbor City BLVD  / East New Haven Ave., Melbourne, FL, 
32901 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 05/01/2023 10:45 05/01/2023 10:58

2023-70 05/01/2023 306 2nd AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 05/01/2023 10:39 05/01/2023 12:25

2023-71 05/01/2023 Intersection  6th AVE  / Pine St, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Assist police or other governmental agency 05/01/2023 12:03 05/01/2023 12:53

2023-72 05/02/2023 405 5th AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/02/2023 13:27 05/02/2023 14:17

2023-73 05/02/2023 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 False alarm or false call, other 05/02/2023 19:16 05/02/2023 22:55

2023-74 05/06/2023 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Cover assignment, standby, moveup 05/06/2023 08:34 05/06/2023 23:14

2023-75 05/06/2023 Intersection  Ocean AVE  / Orange ST, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 05/06/2023 20:06 05/06/2023 20:27

2023-76 05/07/2023 431 Riverview LN , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Carbon monoxide incident 05/07/2023 10:52 05/07/2023 11:29

2023-77 05/07/2023 202 Waterbury LN , Indian Harbour Beach, FL, 32937 Building fire 05/07/2023 15:20 05/07/2023 17:19

2023-78 05/09/2023 2207 Atlantic ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 05/09/2023 13:33 05/09/2023 13:48

2023-79 05/09/2023 Intersection  Avenue B  / Atlantic Street, Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Police matter 05/09/2023 19:49 05/09/2023 20:52

2023-80 05/12/2023 2100 Oak ST , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/12/2023 09:28 05/12/2023 10:27

2023-81 05/18/2023 1095 Highway A1A , Satellite Beach, FL, 32937 Surf rescue 05/18/2023 15:14 05/18/2023 15:25

2023-82 05/19/2023 201 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/19/2023 09:51 05/19/2023 10:30

2023-83 05/19/2023 Intersection  Florida A1A HWY  / Sea Dunes Dr, Melbourne Beach, FL, 
32951 Search for person in water 05/19/2023 12:59 05/19/2023 13:29

2023-84 05/22/2023 201 Ocean Ave , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/22/2023 12:55 05/22/2023 13:38

2023-85 05/23/2023 405 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/23/2023 14:47 05/23/2023 17:08

2023-86 05/30/2023 418 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Special type of incident, other 05/30/2023 12:47 05/30/2023 13:21

2023-87 05/31/2023 507 Ocean AVE , Melbourne Beach, FL, 32951 Emergency medical service, other 05/31/2023 14:14 05/31/2023 14:33

Incident Status(s): All Incident Statuses | Start Date: 05/01/2023 | End Date: 05/31/2023

Doc Id: 1251
emergencyreporting.com

Location Type is only filled in when it is marked Intersection, Directions, or National Grid on Basic Info 3.

Page # 1 of 1

104104



Melbourne Beach, FL
This report was generated on 6/23/2023 10:36:16 AM

Melbourne Beach VFD

Personnel Count per Incident for Date Range

INCIDENT NUMBER OF PEOPLE

NUMBER DATE INCIDENT TYPE FDID ON 
APPARATUS

NOT ON 
APPARATUS TOTAL

2023-68 5/1/2023 10:39:43 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 6 7 13

2023-69 5/1/2023 10:45:12 322 - Motor vehicle accident with injuries 19112 1 0 1

2023-70 5/1/2023 10:39:43 445 - Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 19112 6 7 13

2023-71 5/1/2023 12:03:40 551 - Assist police or other governmental agency 19112 2 0 2

2023-72 5/2/2023 13:27:44 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-73 5/2/2023 19:16:46 700 - False alarm or false call, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-74 5/6/2023 08:34:55 571 - Cover assignment, standby, moveup 19112 2 6 8

2023-75 5/6/2023 20:06:18 323 - Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 19112 4 1 5

2023-76 5/7/2023 10:52:27 424 - Carbon monoxide incident 19112 3 6 9

2023-77 5/7/2023 15:20:53 111 - Building fire 19112 9 3 12

2023-78 5/9/2023 13:33:35 353 - Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 19112 2 9 11

2023-79 5/9/2023 19:49:28 552 - Police matter 19112 2 11 13

2023-80 5/12/2023 09:28:14 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-81 5/18/2023 15:14:06 364 - Surf rescue 19112 2 5 7

2023-82 5/19/2023 09:51:49 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-83 5/19/2023 12:59:26 342 - Search for person in water 19112 6 2 8

2023-84 5/22/2023 12:55:04 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-85 5/23/2023 14:47:48 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-86 5/30/2023 12:47:44 900 - Special type of incident, other 19112 1 0 1

2023-87 5/31/2023 14:14:40 320 - Emergency medical service, other 19112 1 1 2

TOTAL # OF INCIDENTS: 20 AVERAGES: 2.7 2.9 5.6

Start Date: 05/01/2023 | End Date: 05/31/2023

Doc Id: 358
emergencyreporting.com

Only REVIEWED incidents included

Page # 1 of 1

**

**
**

**

**

**

** Without EMS Assist or Service Calls:                   4.7              5.3            10.0
             (Paged out calls only)

Total # of incidents 
    paged out for 
volunteer response: 6

Note: 900 series "Special Incidents" include fire inspections performed.

105105



 

  

Monthly Report Page 1 
 

   
 

Operations:  

In May 2023, The Department responded to 1374 calls for service and 197 house checks.   

Activity: 

 22  Citations / 35 Written Warnings  

 114 Traffic Stops 

 79 Traffic Enforcement 

 10 Traffic Complaint 

 44 Parking Citations 

 Our radar trailer continues to be placed in various locations throughout the Town.    

 PD News 

 The Police Department has lost and found miscellaneous items that have been brought into the 

department, for example, keys, sunglasses, and children's toys. These items were found at our 

beach accesses and Rychman Park. If you believe you may have lost things, come to the Police 

Department during business hours Monday – Friday, 8 am to 5 pm. 

 Beginning Memorial weekend, our Officers will utilize our ATV beach patrol on the weekends 

through the end of summer. The Melbourne Beach Officers will patrol our beach, the accesses, 

and the parks to remind beachgoers of Rip Currents and any parking concerns.  

 Movie in the Park has been rescheduled due to severe weather. We will be notifying everyone 

through our Social Media on the new date.   

 Founder’s Day went well from the police departments side even though we had rain. We will 

be getting with Public Works next year to concentrate on limiting the street parking on Avenue 

A and Ave B.      

The Melbourne Beach Police Officers and I are committed to community policing and keeping our Town safe, 

which is our #1 priority.  

Please see the attachments:  

 Speed Trailer report 

 Sergeant's monthly reports           

Stay Safe, Chief Melanie Griswold 

Melbourne Beach Police Department 

Monthly Report 

May 2023 

106106



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Total Calls for Service 1578 1188 1366 1370 1571 7073
Total Felonies 0 5 1 1 3 10
Total Misdemeanors 5 2 4 12 4 27
Total Capias Requests 0 0 0 2 0 2
Total Traffic Arrests 1 0 0 3 0 4
Total Other Arrests 3 0 0 0 0 3

911 Investigation 27 42 32 39 40 180
Alarm Business 5 7 4 1 2 19
Alarm Residence 1 1 5 9 4 20
Alarm Vehicle 0 1 0 0 0 1
Assault 0 0 0 1 0 1
Animal Complaint 7 4 6 3 5 25
AOA Fire/Medical 6 5 1 2 6 20
AOA LEO 13 11 6 1 1 32
Assist Citizen 7 11 12 8 14 52
Assist DCF 1 2 0 1 1 5
Assist Motorist 1 0 1 1 0 3
Attempt To Contact 4 7 4 2 4 21
Baker Act 0 3 0 0 2 5
Battery 0 1 0 0 0 1
Battery-Domestic 1 0 0 1 0 2
Burglary - Residential 0 1 0 0 0 1
Burglary - Vehicle 1 3 0 0 0 4
Civil Matter 1 4 2 3 5 15
Crash 6 1 6 7 5 25
Criminal Mischief 0 3 5 4 2 14
Deceased Person 0 0 3 0 0 3
Disturbance 3 2 6 0 7 18
Disturbance Domestic 1 1 2 0 1 5
Disturbance Noise 2 3 0 1 7 13
Fraud/Forgery 1 2 1 0 3 7
House Checks 161 70 127 89 197 644
Illegal Dumping 0 0 0 0 0 0
Illegal Parking 21 27 52 46 43 189
Indecent/Lewd Act 1 0 0 0 0 1
Information 8 6 17 11 11 53
Injured/Ill Person 20 17 15 24 12 88

Melbourne Beach Police Department
107107



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Intoxicated Driver 0 0 0 0 0 0
Intoxicated Person 1 0 0 1 1 3
Investigation 1 0 1 3 4 9
Missing Person 0 0 1 2 1 4
Narcotics 0 0 1 0 0 1
Open Door 3 0 3 1 1 8
Ordinance Violation/Code Enf 1 0 0 0 0 1
Overdose 0 1 0 0 0 1
Parking Citations 21 24 81 35 44 205
Patrol Area 87 70 147 124 1 429
Patrol Area Business 185 160 201 225 233 1004
Patrol Area Residential 522 453 454 453 563 2445
Patrol Area School 22 20 32 52 59 185
Phone Call - Threatening 1 0 0 0 0 1
Property Confiscated 0 0 0 1 0 1
Property Found 3 5 4 2 3 17
Property Lost 0 1 3 3 1 8
Reckless Driving 5 4 4 6 7 26
Retail Theft 0 0 0 1 0 1
School Zone 23 30 22 46 36 157
Shooting in the Area 1 0 1 0 0 2
Soliciting 1 1 0 0 1 3
Special Detail 0 0 3 0 3 6
Special Response ATV 0 0 0 0 0 0
Special Response Drone 0 0 0 0 0 0
Standby-Keep the Peace 1 1 2 0 0 4
Suicide 0 1 0 0 0 1
Suicide - Attempt/Threat 0 1 0 0 0 1
Suspicious Incident 19 9 8 18 10 64
Suspicious Person 11 6 6 14 16 53
Suspicious Vehicle 14 21 14 13 12 74
Theft 1 1 0 2 3 7
Traffic Citations 47 19 24 30 22 142
Traffic Complaint 3 2 1 3 10 19
Traffic Enforcement 327 127 135 104 79 772
Traffic Stop 205 101 126 121 114 667
Traffic Obstruction 0 0 2 2 2 6
Trespass 0 3 4 3 4 14

Melbourne Beach Police Department
108108



Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Vehicle Abandoned 1 0 0 0 0 1
Vehicle Inspection 4 5 3 1 2 15
Vehicle Repo/Tow 0 0 0 0 1 1
Wanted Person 0 0 0 0 1 1
Written Warnings 26 5 5 33 35 104

Vehicle Mileage Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec YTD
Car 300 1000 1246 1605 1163 921 5935
Car 360 425 1209 1051 979 954 4618
Car 361 1066 748 562 517 1296 4189
Car 363 118 141 132 387 182 960
Car 364 74 74 74 86 72 380
Car 366 548 484 1052 1000 839 3923
Car 367 625 506 563 494 460 2648
ATV 1 0 23 28 13 55 119
ATV 2 0 1 14 0 8 23

Melbourne Beach Police Department
109109



110110



 

 

   
 
 

Monthly Report May 2023 
 

House Checks: 197 (05/26/23) 
 

• 05/06: Traffic crash hit and run in the 400 block of Banyan Way. The vehicle crashed, 
causing damage to several objects. After an investigation, a court date was issued to the 
driver. 

• 05/06: Traffic crash in the 500 block of Avenue A. Driver of a vehicle hit a parked car.  

• 05/06: Traffic crash in the 300 block of Ocean Avenue. (1) Vehicle involved struck a female 
subject crossing the roadway. The female pedestrian was transported to the hospital by 
BCFR. The vehicle involved was removed by the owner.     

• 05/07: Verbal domestic in the 200 block of Fourth Avenue. No injuries were reported.  

• 05/07: Fraud in the 400 block of Pelican Key. A male was a victim of fraud when attempting 
to purchase something online. The male wished to pursue charges. This case is still open 
for further investigation. 

• 05/17: Fraud in the 300 block of Surf Road. A male had money removed from his account 
into other accounts. This case is still open for further investigation.   

• 05/22: Trespass at the Melbourne Beach Pier. Male and female were trespassed from the 
pier.  

 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Hinchman 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

111111



 

 

   
 

 Sgt. Sadler Monthly Report May 2023 
 

5/3- Baker Act in the 500 blk of Andrews Drive. Female transported to Circles of Care under a 
Baker Act. 
 
5/4- Baker Act in the 100 blk of Riverside Drive. Female transported to Circles of Care under a 
Baker Act. 
 
5/10- Fraud in the 300 blk of Riverview Lane. Money was taken from a cashapp account. Case 
pending investigation. 
 
5/11- Traffic crash in the area of S. Palm Avenue and Poinsettia Road. No injuries or major 
damage. 
 
5/11- Criminal mischief in the 1700 blk of Atlantic Street. Case suspended to file. 
 
5/11- Trespass warning issued to a male in the 500 blk of Ocean Avenue. 
 
5/11- Trespass warning issued to a male in the 100 blk of Ocean Avenue. 
 
5/13- Baker Act in the 700 blk of Riverside Drive. Female transported to Circles of Care as a 
voluntary Baker Act. 
 
5/19- Criminal mischief in the 500 blk of Ocean Avenue. Graffiti on the pier. Case pending further 
investigation.  
 
5/26- Grand theft in the 1000 blk of Atlantic Street. Case pending further investigation. 
 
5/26- Petit theft of a bicycle in the 800 blk of Pine Street. Case pending further investigation. 
 
5/26- Single vehicle traffic crash in the area of Ocean Avenue and Riverside Drive. Vehicle towed 
from scene with property damage. No injuries. 
 
 
 

• Total House Checks - 185 

MELBOURNE BEACH POLICE DEPARTMENT 
Jason Sadler 

Sergeant 
507 Ocean Ave, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951 

Phone: (321) 723-4343  Fax: (321)725-3253 
 

112112



_  

   Town of Melbourne Beach 

 

Town Clerk Report 

 
Business Tax Receipts – Starting the renewal process for the first time through the BS&A software.  The 
letters and emails will be going out next month. 
 
Conference – Attended the Florida Association of City Clerks 2023 Summer Conference & Academy from 
June 17th - 21st.  Classes included 2023 Legislative Updates, Municipal Fraud Awareness, First Amendment 
Audits, Roberts Rules of Order, and Qualifying & Campaign Finance. 
 
Newsletter – The April through June newsletter has been finished and sent out for printing and mailing. 
 
Election – Election packets have been completed.  However, due to legislative updates, there are several 
changes that take effect on 7/1/2023, so the packets will be changing. 
 
Form 1 Financial Disclosures – Form 1 Financial Disclosures were sent out and are due 7/1/2023.  All elected 
officials will be required to start filling out Form 6 effective 7/1/2023. 
 
Community Center Sound System – Received a quote to replace the entire sound system in the Community 
Center from B&H Photo/Video/Audio in the amount of $32,822.59.  Waiting on other quotes. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

113113



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   Old Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

Subject:  Boat Ramp Concept Plans   

 

Background Information: 

The Town Commission requested Bowman Engineering draw a concept plan for site improvement 

at the boat ramp.   

 

 

 

 

Recommendation:  

Review the attached drawing.  Recommend revisions. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

Bowman Engineering’s concept drawing for the boat ramp. 

 

114114



EMERGENCY
VEHICLE PARKING

PI
N

E 
ST

6TH AVE

IN
D

IA
N

 R
IV

ER
 L

AG
O

O
N

12'

40'

11'

23'

11'11'

15'

6'

11'
6'

40'
6'

11'

23'

10'

1A

CHKD

VERSION

SCALE

DRAWNDSGN

B
ow

m
an

 C
on

su
lti

ng
 G

ro
up

, L
td

.

bo
w

m
an

.c
om

©
 B

ow
m

an
 C

on
su

lti
ng

 G
ro

up
, L

td
.

44
50

 W
. E

au
 G

al
lie

 B
lv

d

S
ui

te
 1

44

M
el

bo
ur

ne
, F

L 
32

93
4

P
ho

ne
: (

32
1)

 2
55

-5
43

4

F
ax

: (
32

1)
 2

55
-7

75
1

C
er

tif
ic

at
e 

of
 A

ut
ho

riz
at

io
n 

Li
ce

ns
e 

N
o.

 3
04

62
6T

H
 A

V
EN

U
E

M
EL

B
O

U
R

N
E 

B
EA

C
H

, F
LO

R
ID

A

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

AL
 D

ES
IG

N

PROJECT NUMBER

6T
H

 A
V

E 
B

O
A

T 
R

A
M

P
IM

PR
O

V
EM

EN
TS

PROJECT
GENERAL SITE NOTES:
1. CONDITIONS MAY EXIST THAT COULD RESTRICT THE DEVELOPMENT OF THIS SITE AS SHOWN. THIS

DRAWING IS INTENDED TO BE CONCEPTUAL ONLY AND ADDITIONAL RESEARCH AND DESIGN WOULD BE
REQUIRED FOR THE PREPARATION OF A SITE PLAN THAT MEETS LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL CODES.

2. STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FACILITY SHOWN ON THIS PLAN ARE PURELY CONCEPTUAL AND IS
SUBJECT TO CHANGE UPON FINAL CIVIL DESIGN. BCG DOES NOT PURPORT THAT WHAT IS SHOWN IS
ADEQUATE TO MEET ALL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS.

3. THIS EXHIBIT IS NOT INTENDED TO BE USED AS A CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT, AND SHOULD NOT BE
CONSTRUED IN ANYWAY TO BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION PURPOSES.

SITE DATA TABLE
PROJECT NAME 6TH AVE BOAT RAMP IMPROVEMENTS

PROJECT ADDRESS --

PROJECT DESCRIPTION PARKING LOT & BOAT DOCKING IMPROVEMENTS

TOTAL PARCEL/SITE AREA +/- 11,555 SF (0.27 AC)

EXISTING ZONING RIGHT-OF-WAY

JURISDICTION TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH

TRAILER SPACES (10'x40') 4

PARALLEL SPACES (10'X23') 1

EMER. VEH. PARKING (10'x20') 1

GOLF CART PARKING (6'x11') 4

TOTAL PROPOSED SPACES 9

115115



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2018 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

Subject:  Renewal of Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement 

 

Information: 

The Dispatch Services Agreement renews annually on October 1st, through September 31st.   The 

agreement provides the Town of Melbourne Beach’s Fire Department with dispatching radio 

emergency and non-emergency requests for assistance from the Town of Indialantic. 

The Ninth Amendment to the Interlocal Agreement is in the amount is $5,600.00, an increase of 

$200 from FY2023. 

The FY2023 Agreement is $5,400.00  

 

 

 Recommendation:  

Approve FY2023-2024 Fire Rescue Dispatch Service Interlocal Agreement at the cost of $5,600 

annually. 

  

 

 

 

Attachments:   

FY2023-2024 Contract 

116116



 

 

THIS INSTRUMENT RETURN TO: 
Town Clerk 
Town of Indialantic 216 Fifth Avenue 
Indialantic, FL 32903 

 
 
 
 

NINTH AMENDMENT TO 

FIRE-RESCUE DISPATCH SERVICES INTERLOCAL 

AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____, day of _______, 2023, by the Town of 

Indialantic, Florida, a Florida Municipal Corporation (herein: "Indialantic"), whose address 
is 216 Fifth Avenue, Indialantic, Florida 32903; and the Town of  Melbourne  Beach, Florida, 
a Florida Municipal  Corporation {herein:  "Melbourne  Beach",) whose address is 507 
Ocean Avenue . Melbourne Beach, Florida 32951. 

 

RECITALS: 
 

WHEREAS, Indialantic has agreed to provide fire-rescue dispatch services for 

Melbourne Beach in consideration of funding to be paid by Melbourne Beach; and 

 
WHEREAS, the agreement between Indialantic and Melbourne Beach is set forth 

in the Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services Interlocal Agreement which was recorded on 

January 27, 2015, in Official Records Book 7290, Page 198, Public Records of 

Brevard County, Florida (herein: the "Original Agreement"); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Original Agreement terminated September 30, 2015, and the 

parties extended the effective period of the Original Agreement through approval of the 
First and Second Amendments; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Ninth Amendment to the Original Agreement terminates 

September 30, 2023, and the parties are desirous of extending the effective period of the 

Original Agreement as amended and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 4. of the Agreement requires that any proposal to renew the 
Agreement must be received by both parties no later than June 1st of the year of 

renewal, and the parties have complied with all requirements of the Agreement for 

renew al and amendment of the Agreement; and 

WHERE AS, the Melbourne Beach Town Commission approved this Ninth 
Amendment to the Fire-Rescue Services Interlocal Agreement on the ____ day of 
_________, 2023; and 

WHERE AS, the Indialantic Town Council approved this Ninth Amendment to Fire- 
Rescue Dispatch Services interlocal Agreement on the 14th  day of June, 2023. 

 
  

117117



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of Ten and 00/100 DOLLARS ($10.00) and 
certain other good and diverse consideration rations, each to the other paid in hand, the 
sufficiency and receipt all of which be and the same is hereby acknowledged, the parties 
desiring to be legally bound do hereby agree as follows: 

 
1. Recitals. Each and all the foregoing recitals be and the same are hereby 

incorporated herein and acknowledged to be true and correct. Failure of any of the 
foregoing recitals to be true and correct shall not operate to invalidate this Agreement. 
Certain of the terms used herein are as defined in the Original Agreement. 

 
2. Amendment of Agreement. Section 3 and Section 7 of the Agreement shall 

be amended as set forth below. In interpreting this Amendment to Fire-Rescue Dispatch 

Services lnterlocal Agreement, underlined language is new text, and stricken through 

language is deleted text from the Agreement. 

 
SECTION 3. TERM: This Agreement and any amendments hereto will 
be in force and become effective upon recording in the Public Records 
of Brevard. Florida (after approval and signature by both elected 
governing bodies). The term of this Agreement will be from January 
27, 2015, the date of recording in the Public Records of Brevard 
County, Florida, of this fully executed Agreement until September 30, 
2024. The Agreement may be renewed annually. 
 
SECTION 7. COMPENSATION/PAYMENT:  Melbourne Beach agrees to 
pay Indialantic the sum of Five Thousand six hundred Dollars, ($5,600) 
per year for the services provided under Section 5 of this agreement.  
Payment of services shall be made on a quarterly (three (3) month) basis 
with payment being due no later than the first day of January, April, July 
and October for services provided during the previous three (3) months.  
Payment which arrives at Indialantic ten (10) Indialantic working days late 
shall be subject to interest charges as provided by Section 218.335, 
Florida Statutes.  In the event this Agreement is terminated by either party 
and terminates prior to the completion of a quarter, Melbourne Beach 
agrees to pay Indialantic a pro-rated amount for all whole and partial 
months dispatching services were provided. For example, if Indialantic 
gives notice to Melbourne Beach on July 10th that it is terminating the 
Agreement effective forty-five (45) days later on August 24th (as provided 
for by Section 10. of this Agreement), the $1,400 quarterly payment due 
to Indialantic shall be prorated based on a formula: $1,400 shall be 
multiplied by the following fraction, the numerator of which is fifty-five (55) 
which is the number of days during the quarter that service was provided 
and the denominator of which is ninety-two (92) which is the number of 
days constituting the entire quarter. 

  

118118



3. Effective Date: Recordation. Melbourne Beach hereby agrees to pay for any 

costs of recordation of this Ninth Agreement to Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services lnterlocal 

Agreement in the Public Records of Brevard County, Florida. The recorded original hereof 
shall be returned to Indialantic for filing in its records. This Amendment to Fire-Rescue 

Dispatch Services lnterlocal Agreement shall become effective on the date of recording of this 

Ninth Amendment to Fire-Rescue Dispatch Services lnterlocal Agreement in the Public 

Records of Brevard County, Florida. 
 

Executed as of the date first above written. 

 

Signed, sealed, and delivered in 
The presence of: 

 
      TOWN OF INDIALANTIC, FLORIDA 
      a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
      By:       
      Michael Casey, Town Manager 
      216 Fifth Ave., 
      Indialantic FL 32903 
 
ATTEST:       
 Mollie Carr, Town Clerk  (TOWN SEAL) 
   
 
 
 
 
      
 
      TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, Florida 
      a Florida Municipal Corporation 
 
 
      By:       
      Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 
      507 Ocean Ave.,  
      Melbourne Beach FL 32951 
 
ATTEST:       
               Amber Brown, Town Clerk  (TOWN SEAL) 
   
 

119119



Regular Town Commission Meeting Agenda    

 

Section:   New Business  

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023  

Subject: Chief of Police Job Description    

Submitted By:  Jennifer Kerr, Finance Manager 

 

Background Information 

 
Update the Chief of Police Job Description to coincide with the requirements held to hire Police 
Chief Daniel Duncan and Police Chief Melanie Griswold.  
   

Recommendation:   

Approval of the Chief of Police Job Description.  

Attachments: 

Chief of Police Job Description  

Ad for Chief of Police when Daniel Duncan was hired 

120120



Chief of Police   1 

 

Approved by Town Commission:  

TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH 

 

JOB TITLE:  CHIEF OF POLICE 

 

DEPARTMENT: Police Department 

 

JOB SUMMARY:  This position is responsible for directing the operations of the 

department. 

 

MAJOR DUTIES: 

 

 Plans, coordinates and supervises departmental operations. 

 Directs the personnel functions of the department, including employee 

recruitment, personnel records maintenance, disciplinary and promotional 

action implementation, employee training, and performance evaluation. 

 Prepares reports on departmental activities to the Town Manager; 

coordinates departmental operations with those of other departments. 

 Meets with local citizens and business owners to resolve problems, plan 

special events, and improve the delivery of police services. 

 Advises the Town Manager and governing authority on issues pertaining 

to law enforcement operations. 

 Reviews departmental operations for risk management concerns; amends 

departmental policies to reduce potential liabilities. 

 Evaluates personnel, equipment and training requirements for ongoing 

departmental operations and special events. 

 Approves media releases and conducts media presentations. 

 Prepares the annual departmental operating budget; monitors expenditures 

under the current budget. 

 Oversees the investigation of criminal offenses committed within the 

jurisdiction of the town. 

 Establishes the departmental mission, goals and objectives; develops and 

implements operating policies and procedures. 

 Establishes policy and direction for community crime prevention 

programs. 

 Attends professional meetings, hearings and conferences. 

 Receives, evaluates and approves external requests for departmental 

records, reports and files. 

 Be an active police officer as required. 

 Perform other duties as assigned by the Town Manager. 

 

KNOWLEDGE REQUIRED BY THE POSITION: 

 

 Knowledge of the theories, principles and practices of police 

administration. 

 Knowledge of management and supervisory techniques and principles. 

121121



Chief of Police   2 

 

Approved by Town Commission:  

 Knowledge of personnel management practices and related laws. 

 Knowledge of budgetary planning and execution procedures. 

 Knowledge of federal, state and local criminal and civil law. 

 Knowledge of the criminal justice system. 

 Knowledge of criminal investigation techniques. 

 Knowledge of the geography, boundaries and streets of the town. 

 Skill in planning, organizing, analyzing, decision making and problem 

solving. 

 Skill in the use of police equipment. 

 Skill in oral and written communication. 

 Skill in public relations. 

 

SUPERVISORY CONTROLS: The Town Manager assigns work in terms of 

departmental goals and objectives. Completed work is reviewed through conferences, 

reports, and observation of departmental activities. 

 

GUIDELINES: Guidelines include federal and state laws and regulations, departmental 

policies and operating procedures, and town codes, policies and procedures. These 

guidelines require judgment, selection and interpretation in application. The employee 

develops and interprets guidelines. 

COMPLEXITY: The work consists of varied managerial and technical duties. 

 

SCOPE AND EFFECT: The purpose of this position, is to manage and direct the 

provision of police services for the town. Successful performance helps ensure the 

maintenance of good order and protection of life and property for the community and 

affects the public image of the town. 

 

PERSONAL CONTACTS: Contacts are typically with co-workers, elected officials, 

news media representatives, members of civic and business groups, representatives of the 

judicial system, members of other law enforcement agencies, and the general public. 

 

PURPOSE OF CONTACTS: Contacts are typically to give and exchange information, 

resolve problems, motivate personnel, settle matters and provide services. 

 

PHYSICAL DEMANDS: The work is typically performed with the employee sitting, 

standing, walking, running, bending, crouching or stooping. The employee must 

occasionally lift light or heavy objects, use equipment requiring a high degree of 

dexterity, be able to distinguish between shades of color, and use the physical force 

necessary to arrest and restrain persons. 

 

WORK ENVIRONMENT: The work is performed indoors, in a vehicle, and outdoors. 

The employee is exposed to inclement weather, infectious diseases, and life-threatening 

situations. The work may require the use of masks, gloves, bulletproof vests, and other 

protective equipment. 

 

122122



Chief of Police   3 

 

Approved by Town Commission:  

SUPERVISORY AND MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES: The position has 

direct supervision over Administrative Specialist, Sergeants, Patrol Officers, and School 

Crossing Guard. 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

  

 Must meet the minimum employment standards of the Florida Criminal 

Justice Standards & Training Commission. 

 Must be a currently State Certified Florida Law Enforcement Officer, or 

obtain certification within six (6) months of employment.  

 Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university with major 

course work in Criminal Justice, Public Administration, or a related filed.  

 Possess a minimum of fifteen (15) years of experience in the field of law 

enforcement, with progressive supervisory experience, to include, at least 

five (5) years of experience at a command level in a law enforcement 

agency.  

 Completion of F.B.I. National Academy, Southern Police Institute, or a 

similar institute or academy is desirable.  

 Have formal training in contemporary police administration 

methodologies & procedures. 

 Have a strong commitment to Community-Oriented Policing. 

 Possession of a valid driver’s license issued by the State of Florida.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

123123



Police Chief---The Town of Melbourne Beach, FL (population 3,300) located on the 
southern coast of Brevard County is seeking candidates for the position of Police Chief. 
Salary range is $48,787.48-$66,230.21; starting salary commensurate with education, 
qualifications, & experience.  This position reports directly to the Town Manager.  The 
Department consists of 8 sworn personnel & 1 full-time civilian.  
 
Requirements: 
 

 Must meet the minimum employment standards of the Florida Criminal Justice 
Standards & Training Commission. 

 Have a strong commitment to Community-Oriented Policing. 

 Must be a currently State Certified Florida Law Enforcement Officer, or obtain 
certification within 6 months of employment. 

 Have formal training in contemporary police administration methodologies & 
procedures. 

 Possess a minimum of 15 years of experience in the field of law enforcement, 
with progressive supervisory experience to include at least 5 years experience at 
a command level in a law enforcement agency. 

 A Bachelors Degree from an accredited college or university with major course 
work in Criminal Justice or Public Administration preferred. 

 Completion of F.B.I. National Academy, Southern Police Institute, or similar 
institute or academy desirable. 

 Possess a valid Florida driver’s license. 
 
The Town of Melbourne Beach is an Equal Opportunity Employer and a Drug Free 
Workplace. Successful candidate must complete employment physical, and pass 
polygraph and psychological tests prior to employment. Submit a completed 
employment application for the Town of Melbourne Beach along with a detailed resume, 
including salary history with the names and contact information of three work-related 
and three personal references to: 
 
Town of Melbourne Beach 
James D. Bursick, Town Manager 
507 Ocean Avenue  
Melbourne Beach, FL  32951 
jbursick@melbournebeachfl.org 
 
Employment applications may be obtained at: www.melbournebeachfl.org or by calling 
(321) 724-5860. 
This position posting is open until filled. 

124124



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023 

From:   Robert Bitgood, Building Official 

Subject:  Limiting Plan Review Submissions to Planning & Zoning Board 
  

 

Background Information: 

Currently the Planning and Zoning Board convenes monthly to review site plans for compliance 

with the Town Code of Ordinances.  The Building Official knows our Town Codes, as well as, the 

State of Florida Building Codes. The Building Official has years of experience working in the 

building trades, reading blueprints, examining plans, calculating setbacks, height requirements 

and Pervious to impervious ratios.  

The Town Code of Ordinances states in 7A-1379(g) “ 

The Planning and Zoning Board shall review site plans for all multi-family residential and 

commercial construction as provided by § 7A-51 to determine compliance with the Land 

Development Code, compliance with all height and setback regulations and § 7A-59 of the Town 

of Melbourne Beach Code of Ordinances, and to prepare written recommendations for the Town 

Commission.  If the Town Commission has directed from time to time that the Planning and Zoning 

Board undertake review of site plans for development within the 1-RS, 2-RS, and 3-RS zoning 

districts as provided by § 7A-51.1, the Planning and Zoning Board will review site plans for single-

family residential and other development as provided by § 7A-51.1 to determine compliance with 

the Land Development Code and to prepare written recommendations for the Town Commission” 

The Building Official would like to bring commercial, multi-family, new single family construction 

and exterior remodels exceeding 50% of the home value to Planning and Zoning. Limiting the site 

plans brought before P&Z would reduce the staff time spent on preparing documents by the 

Building Administrative Assistant, Town Clerk and Police Department (9 hours) and the 4.5 hours 

expended by the Building Official, Town Manager and Town Clerk for the actual meeting.   

Allowing the Building Official to decision the site plans would allow the residents and their 

contractors to receive approvals more quickly. This would also help the residents get on a 

contractors schedule timelier since there wouldn’t be a 45 day wait for a decision. 

 

  

 

125125



 

 

Recommendation:  

Approve the Building Official signing off on all site plans, except for commercial, multi-family, new 

single family construction and exterior remodels exceeding 50% of the home value. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

Melbourne Beach Town Code of Ordinances 7A-137 Powers and Duties. 

 

126126



127127



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023 

From:   Amber Brown, Town Clerk 

Subject:  Memorandum of Understanding for posting legal notices on  
   Brevard County’s publicly accessible website  

 

Background Information: 

House Bill 7049 provides county and municipal government agencies with the ability to 

post certain legal notices and ads on the county’s website, as opposed to being published 

in the local newspaper.   

The County has obtained a platform to publish legal notices that meet the legal 

requirements set by HB7049. 

Brevard County has been publishing its legal notices on the platform since the beginning 

of this year and has now approved a memorandum of understanding for other agencies 

and municipalities to start posting on the website. 

 

 

Recommendation:  

Consideration and approval of the Memorandum of Understanding for posting legal 
notices on Brevard County’s publicly accessible website. 
 

 

Attachments:   

Memorandum of Understand  

128128



 

Page 1 of 6 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND 

 
__________________________________________________________ 
POSTING OF LEGAL NOTICES ON PUBLICLY ACCESSIBLE WEBSITE 

 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) is made and entered into the 

date of last signature below, by and between BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA, a 

political subdivision of the State of Florida (the “County”) and _____________________ 

_______________________________________________________ (the 

“Governmental Agency”). 

 

RECITALS: 

 WHEREAS, Governor DeSantis signed into law Chapter 2022-103, Laws of 

Florida, which, among other things, allows certain legal notices to be published on a 

“publicly accessible website”; and                                                                                                                             

 WHEREAS, in order for such notices to be published online, a “publicly 

accessible website” either means the County’s official website or other private website 

designated by the County for the publication of legal notices that is accessible via the 

internet; and 

 WHEREAS, the County has determined that a designated private website is the 

most effective and efficient way of allowing such notices to be posted in accordance 

with Chapter 50, Florida Statutes (the “Website”); and  

 WHEREAS, the Governmental Agency understands that it is solely responsible 

for determining which legal notices must legally be published and what timeframes 

apply to such postings; and 

 WHEREAS, the parties find that entering into this agreement serves a public 

purpose and will allow citizens to more easily search for legal notices, while providing a 

wider range of readership to the public thereby allowing for greater public participation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto mutually agree to the following terms 

and conditions: 

1. RECITALS. The above recitals are true and correct, and incorporated herein by 

this reference. 

 

129129



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

2. TERM. The term of this MOU shall run from the date of last signature below 

through January 1st, 2024 (the “Initial Term”).  Following the Initial Term, this 

MOU shall automatically renew for consecutive one (1) year periods, unless 

either party provides the other with a termination notice in writing at least thirty 

(30) days in advance.  

 

3. OBLIGATIONS OF GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY.  

 

A. The Governmental Agency is responsible for ensuring its legal notices 

are received by the County at least two (2) business days in advance 

of the time needed for publication. For example, if the notice must be 

published on Friday, then the notice must be received by the County 

by 9:00 am on Wednesday. 

 

B. The Governmental Agency has determined that posting notices on the 

Website is a cost-effective alternative to posting notices in the 

newspaper.  

 

C. Ensure the appropriate link to the Website is available on the 

Governmental Agency’s webpage. 

 

D. Designate a liaison to monitor user access management. The 

Governmental Agency will need to identify personnel that are 

authorized to submit notices onto the Website. It is the Governmental 

Agency’s sole responsibility to ensure this list is up-to-date to ensure 

no unauthorized notices are published. 

 

E. The Governmental Agency is responsible for all issues relating to first-

class mail, including, but not limited to, mailing requested notices and 

maintaining any applicable mailing registry. 

 

F. Include any necessary link(s) on the Governmental Agency’s 

homepage to ensure the Website is accessible. 

 

4. OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY.  

 

A. Once the Governmental Agency has prepared and submitted the 

notice for posting, the County will post the notice on the Website. 

 

130130



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

5. COSTS. The Governmental Agency shall be responsible for making the following 

payments: 

 

A. A flat fee of $125.00 shall be assessed for each notice that is posted 

on the Website during the Initial Term. This amount is subject to 

change for each additional renewal year. The County will provide the 

Governmental Agency written notice at least fifteen (15) days in 

advance of such price adjustment, which shall take effect on the 

anniversary of each renewal period. 

 

B. Affidavits are included in the $125.00 fee. The Website host will 

provide any necessary affidavits. 

 

C. Updates to any notice prior to publication can be made by the 

Governmental Agency at no additional charge. However, once posted, 

any updates to a published notice will be considered a new notice and 

will cost $125.00. If a posting error is caused by the County, then the 

cost to publish shall be waived. 

 

D. Invoices will be sent by the County every three (3) months and must be 

paid within 45 days. 

 

E. The flat fee of $125.00 will be reviewed by the County prior to January 

1st of each renewal year. The County shall provide notice of any cost 

adjustments in writing to the Governmental Agency.  

 

6. LIABILITY; INSURANCE.  

 

A. Neither party, nor its respective officers, employees, or agents, shall 

assume any liability for the acts, omissions, or negligence of the other 

party, or the other party’s officers, employees, or agents. 

 

B. The parties agree that nothing contained herein shall be construed or 

interpreted as a waiver of sovereign immunity or statutory limitations of 

liability under Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, by either party. 

 

C. Each party shall acquire and maintain throughout the term of this MOU 

such liability insurance as required to respond to its obligations under 

this MOU and Section 768.28, Florida Statutes. 

 

131131



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

7. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall enter into any agreement with third parties to 

delegate any or all of the rights or responsibilities in this MOU without the prior 

written approval of the other party. 

 

8. ATTORNEY’S FEES; GOVERNING LAW; VENUE; WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. 

The parties agree: 

 

A. In the event of any legal action between the parties arising out of this 

MOU, each party shall bear is own attorney’s fees and costs.  

 

B. This MOU, regardless of where executed, shall be governed by and 

construed according to the laws of the State of Florida. 

 

C. Venue for any legal action brought by either party to interpret, 

construe, or enforce this MOU shall be in a court of competent 

jurisdiction in and for Brevard County, Florida. 

 

D. EACH PARTY AGREES TO WAIVE ITS RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL 

AND ANY TRIAL SHALL BE NON-JURY. 

 

9. ENTIRETY OF AGREEMENT. This MOU, including any attached exhibits, riders, 

and/or addenda, sets forth the entire agreement between the parties. This MOU 

shall not be modified unless it is in writing and executed by the authorized 

representative of each respective party. 

 

10. TERMINATION. This MOU may be terminated at any time with at least thirty (30) 

days advanced written notice (“Termination Period”). The existing notices that 

have been paid for shall remain available on the Website for public viewing. 

 

11. NOTICE. Notice under this MOU shall be by written notice and sent via certified 

mail to the following representatives: 

 

FOR THE COUNTY    FOR THE GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY 

Brevard County Manager   [INSERT CONTACT AND ADDRESS] 

2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way 

Suite C-301 

Viera, FL 32940 

 

12. INTERPRETATION. Both Parties have had the opportunity to consult with legal 

counsel and to participate in the drafting of this MOU.  Consequently, this MOU 

132132



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

shall not be more strictly or more harshly construed against either party as the 

drafter. 

 

13. SEVERABILITY. If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any sentence, 

provision, paragraph, or section of this MOU void or unenforceable, the 

remaining parts of this MOU shall continue to full force and effect as though such 

sentence, provision, paragraph, section had been omitted from this MOU.  The 

Parties shall use their best efforts to rehabilitate and replace the unenforceable 

provision or provisions of this MOU with lawful terms and conditions 

approximating the original intent of the Parties. 

 

14. FURTHER ASSURANCES. Each Party, without further consideration, shall take 

such action, execute and deliver such documents as the other may reasonably 

request to correct or effectuate the purpose of this MOU. 

 

15. HEADINGS AND CAPTIONS. All headings and captions herein contained are for 

the convenience of the parties, and may not be used to define, interpret, or 

construe any provision of this MOU. 

 

16. AUDIT RIGHTS AND PUBLIC RECORDS. Both parties agree and understand to 

comply with the requirements of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, pertaining to 

public records. 

 

17. COUNTERPARTS AND AUTHORITY. This MOU may be executed in 

counterparts all of which, taken together, shall constitute one and the same 

MOU.  Each party represents that the person signing on its behalf has been fully 

authorized by all required action to sign on behalf of and to bind that party to the 

obligations stated herein. 

133133



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties, through their authorized representatives, 

have hereunto set their hands and seals on the day and year last written below.  

 
WITNESS     BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 
 
 
 
__________________________  By:_________________________________ 

    Frank Abbate, County Manager 
       

 
 
WITNESS     GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY 
 
 
        
__________________________  By:_________________________________ 
       Name, Title 
 

134134



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

Subject:  2023-2024 SRO MOU   

 

Background Information: 

The 2023-2024 school year will be the sixth year the Town of Melbourne Beach has 

participated in the SRO program. The School Resource Officer’s compensation from the 

Brevard County School District will be $68,500 for the upcoming year. 

The first SRO MOU was for the 2018-2019 school year.  

 

Recommendation:  

Approve the 2023-2024 School Resource Officer’s MOU for $68,500. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

MOU 

 

135135



1 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

 

 THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (this “MOU”), is 
entered into and made effective this 1st day of July, 2023, irrespective of when 
signed, by and between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF BREVARD COUNTY, 

FLORIDA, hereinafter called the “BOARD,” and the TOWN OF MELBOURNE 

BEACH, FLORIDA, hereinafter called the “TOWN,” each individually a “Party,” 
collectively “Parties.” 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 
 WHEREAS, the BOARD and the TOWN desire to assign School Resource 
Officers (“SROs”) to school campus(es) within the TOWN for a period of not more 
than 190 days during the school year; and 
  
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the Marjory Stoneman Douglas High School 
Public Safety Act, the BOARD and the TOWN believe that this partnership will 
improve communication among local law enforcement entities, the Florida 
Department of Juvenile Justice, the Florida Department of Children and Families, 
the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, community behavioral health 
providers, and the Brevard Public School District, to increase school and district 
security efforts and services, provide prevention/intervention strategies, and 
provide/expand opportunities for safety and security training and awareness for the 
BOARD’s staff members, as well as the faculty and students attending the schools 
under the jurisdiction of the BOARD and the parents of such students;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and promises made 
below, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties 
agree as follows: 
 

1. The recitals set forth above are true and correct and are hereby incorporated 
into this MOU. 

 
2. This MOU shall be effective commencing July 1, 2023, and terminate on June 

30, 2024, unless otherwise terminated earlier as provided herein.  After the 
expiration of the term ending on June 30, 2024, this Agreement may be 
renewed by the Parties for successive one-year periods (commencing on July 
1st and ending on June 30th of each successive year) upon the written 
agreement of the Parties.  Thus, the Agreement will not automatically renew 
and any renewal can only occur upon the written agreement of the Parties. 

136136



2 

 

Either Party may terminate this MOU upon ninety (90) days’ written notice to 
the other Party.  Any termination of this MOU that results in overpayment to 
the TOWN will result in the return of funds to the BOARD equal to the 
proportionate amount of time remaining in the MOU. 

 
3. The TOWN shall assign up to one (1) SRO(s), each a sworn law enforcement 

officer(s), to work at least a total of One Hundred Ninety (190) days, 
concurrent to the School Board of Brevard County’s teacher work calendar 
and inclusive of student attendance days.  Each SRO shall be assigned to 
designated Brevard Public School campuses to provide security, preparation 
drills, safety training, and safety awareness related programs to the respective 
school campus, students, employees, volunteers, and visitors of the Brevard 
Public School District. The TOWN will provide a minimum of one (1) SRO(s) 
for the start of the 2023-24 school year.  Assignments of SRO(s) to school 
campuses shall be coordinated with Major Robert Cline, Director of District 

and School Security at 2700 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Viera, FL 32940.  
Assignments will be made to support the following schools: Gemini 
Elementary School. 

 
4. Consideration Clause FY 2023-2024: With respect to the term commencing 

on July 1, 2023, and terminating on June 30, 2024, the BOARD agrees to 

reimburse the TOWN a flat-fee of Sixty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and 

00/100 Dollars ($68,500.00) per SRO  for law enforcement services, which 

includes a portion of the  salary, benefits, and associated costs of the TOWN 

as agreed upon for up to the assigned one (1) SRO(s), for a total not to exceed 

amount of Sixty-Eight Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars 

($68,500.00).  If an SRO position remains vacant or becomes vacant, payment 

will only be made on prorated basis based on the number of days remaining 

in a school year once the SRO is assigned to a school (or based on days SRO 

services are provided). 

 

5. FY 2023-2024:  The TOWN shall be responsible for making salary payments 
and providing benefits to the SRO(s).  The BOARD shall reimburse the 
TOWN in four (4) equivalent installments calculated to include the following: 
the quarterly cost of each assigned SRO contemplated in Paragraph 3 and 4 
above due on or before August 1, 2023 (covering the period beginning July 1, 
2023, through September 30, 2023); November 1, 2023 (covering the period 
beginning October 1, 2023, through December 31, 2023); February 1, 2024 
(covering the period beginning January 1, 2024, through March 31, 2024); 

137137



3 

 

and April 1, 2024 (covering the period beginning April 1, 2024, through June 
30, 2024).  All invoices should be submitted to Major Robert Clinel, Director 

of District and School Security at 2700 Judge Fran Jamieson Way, Viera, FL 

32940. 
 

6. The TOWN shall provide the law enforcement equipment and training related 
to the services provided by the SRO(s). 

 
7. The Parties understand and agree that the SRO(s), in rendering services 

provided for by this MOU, is/are doing so as an employee of the TOWN and 
not as an officer, agent, or employee of the BOARD. 

 
8. BOARD members or any employee under the jurisdiction of the BOARD 

shall not conduct an internal or administrative investigation or inquiry of 
alleged improper conduct on the part of any employee of the TOWN.  All 
concerns or allegations of improper conduct shall be forwarded immediately 
upon receipt by the Superintendent or designee to the Chief of Police or 
designee.  

 
9. The SRO(s) shall comply with the provisions specified in Section 1006.12, 

Florida Statutes (the School Resource Officer Program). 
  

10. At any time during the school year when students are not in school, or at the 
conclusion of the regular school year, the SRO(s) may be assigned other law 
enforcement duties by the Chief of Police.  At the request of the Board and 
with the approval of the Chief of Police or designee, the Chief of Police may 
provide SROs for school activities after the conclusion of the regular school 
year until the beginning of the next school year as safe-school security 
services for summer school activities.  These services do not financially 
impact this MOU or the agreed upon financial consideration. 
 

11. During critical incidents, such as, but not limited to, natural disasters or 
declared emergencies by the federal government, Governor of Florida, 
Brevard County Commission, Brevard County Emergency Operations Center 
Policy Group, or TOWN, the Parties shall discuss the specific role and 
activities of the SROs to accomplish the needs of the BOARD and the TOWN 
throughout the time period of the critical incident, but at no time can either 
Party fail to fulfill the respective obligations by each Party as contained in this 
MOU, and Exhibit I and Exhibit II, to include funding, without mutually 

138138



4 

 

agreed written agreement.  However, if the TOWN is unable due to the nature 
of the critical incident, not due to any action or directive from the BOARD or 
employees, representatives or agents of the BOARD, to provide the services 
for which the TOWN is obligated to provide pursuant to this MOU, the 
BOARD shall not be obligated to pay for services that are not being rendered 
or offered to be rendered by the TOWN. 

 
12. At all material times, the SRO(s) shall wear the TOWN’s Police Department 

uniform or other attire as authorized by the Chief of Police.  
 

13. The Parties agree that each Party shall be responsible for any economic 
damages that result from the negligence or intentional acts of such Party or 
such Party’s employees, officers, agents, or attorneys.   

 
14. The BOARD and TOWN acknowledge that each entity is an agency or 

subdivision of the State of Florida.  To the extent permitted in Section 
768.28(19), Florida Statutes, each Party shall indemnify, defend, and hold 
harmless, and free from the liability, the other Party, its officers, agents, or 
employees while acting as such from all damages, costs, and expenses, 
including attorney’s fees, which any of them may become obligated to pay by 
reason of the services contemplated hereunder except to the extent caused by 
the sole negligence of a Party.   
 

15. The provisions of this MOU are in no event intended to constitute a waiver 
of, or in any way affect or impinge, the rights, privileges and immunities of 
any Party provided or arising pursuant to the provisions of Section 768.28, 
Florida Statutes, as amended from time to time, or any corresponding 
provisions of law. 

 
16. The TOWN agrees to the goals and guidelines stipulated in the attached 

Exhibits I and II, which are incorporated by reference herein and made a part 
hereof. 

 
17. This MOU and respective Exhibits I and II, constitute the entire agreement 

between the Parties and contains all of the agreements described herein 
between the Parties with respect to the subject matter contained herein. This 
MOU supersedes all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the 
Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter of this MOU and respective 
Exhibits I and II. 

  

139139



5 

 

18. No provision of this MOU may be changed or modified except by written 
agreement signed by the Parties. 

 
19. This MOU is for the benefit of BOARD and the TOWN.  No other person is 

intended to be a beneficiary under this MOU.  No employee of the TOWN 
shall derive any property right in his/her employment not otherwise enjoyed 
by such employee, by virtue of this MOU. Furthermore, neither the TOWN 
nor the BOARD assumes any duties to any individual, including foreseeable 
victims of crime, not otherwise imposed by common law, by virtue of the 
execution of this MOU. 

 
20. The Parties acknowledge that, by the signing of this MOU, they have the right, 

power, legal capacity, and authority to enter into, and perform their respective 
obligations under this MOU, and no approvals or consents of any persons 
other than the Parties are necessary in connection with this MOU. 

 
21. The Parties shall not assign nor transfer their respective obligations under this 

MOU, but this MOU shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding 
the election or appointment of a Chief of Police who succeeds the TOWN in 
office.  This MOU shall be binding on the Parties’ respective successors. 

 
22. Notwithstanding any provisions in this MOU to the contrary, if the BOARD 

does not provide funding to the TOWN to provide services pursuant to this 
MOU or any appendix contained or referenced, the TOWN may terminate this 
MOU without incurring any further liability or obligations to the BOARD. 

 
23. The BOARD has designated the Major and the TOWN has designated the 

Chief of Police for the purpose of implementing the terms of this MOU. 
 

24. To the extent that any provision of this MOU shall be determined by a court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such provision shall 
be deleted from this MOU, and the validity and enforceability of the 
remainder of such provision, if any, and of this MOU shall be unaffected. 

 
25. This MOU shall be subject to and governed by the laws of the State of Florida, 

without regard to that state’s conflict of laws principles. Venue for any action 
to interpret or enforce this MOU or that otherwise arises out of this MOU, 
shall lie exclusively in the appropriate state court in and for Brevard County, 
Florida. 

 

140140



6 

 

26. This MOU may be executed simultaneously in two or more counterparts, each 
of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and 
the same instrument. 

 
27. The Parties acknowledge that many of their communications and 

documentation pertaining to this MOU may contain sensitive security 
information that is confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 
requirements in accordance with Section 281.301, Florida Statutes, and 
Section 119.071(3), Florida Statutes. Each Party acknowledges and agrees 
that it will comply with all aspects of Florida law relative to this MOU, 
including, but not limited to, the provisions of Chapters 119 and 281, Florida 
Statutes, pertaining to security systems / features, personnel schedules, duties, 
assignments, security personnel numbers, plans, records, and meetings that 
may be exempt from public access or disclosure.  

 

28. IF THE BOARD HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 

APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119 and 281, FLORIDA STATUTES, 

TO THE BOARD’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS 

RELATING TO THIS MOU, THE BOARD SHALL CONTACT THE 

TOWN’S CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS (CURRENTLY 

_____________________________) AT 321-_724-5860_______ OR AT 

EMAIL: townclerk@melbournebeachfl.org________________ OR AT 

ADDRESS:  507 Ocean Avenue, Melbourne Beach, FL 32951_, 

(ATTENTION:  RECORDS). 

 

29. IF THE TOWN HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION 

OF CHAPTER 119 and 281, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE TOWN’S 

DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 

MOU, THE TOWN SHALL CONTACT THE BOARD’S CUSTODIAN 

OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 321-633-1000, EXT. 11453, OR AT 

SCHOOL BOARD OF BREVARD COUNTY, ATTENTION: 

RECORDS, 2700 JUDGE FRAN JAMIESON WAY, VIERA, FLORIDA 

32940. 

 
 

 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW 

 

 

141141



7 

 

 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the authorized representatives of the each of the 
Parties hereto sign this MOU below on the date specified below, but in all events 
effective July 1, 2023.  
 
 
 
TOWN OF MELBOURNE BEACH, THE SCHOOL BOARD OF 

FLORIDA      BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
BY_________________________ BY____________________________ 
      Matthew J. Susin, Chairman 
       
 
Dated:  ______________, 2023   Dated:  ___________________, 2023 
 

 
BY____________________________ 

                Mark J. Rendell, Ed.D. 
    Superintendent  
      
 

       Dated: ____________________, 2023 
 
 
Approved as to form: Approved as to form: 
 
____________________________ ______________________________ 
 Paul Gibbs, General Counsel 
 School Board of Brevard County, Florida 
 
Dated: __________________, 2023 Dated: ____________________, 2023 

 
 
 
 
Attachments: Exhibit I 
   Exhibit   II 

 

 

142142



8 

 

 
 

Exhibit I 

 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 

PROGRAM GOALS 

 
1. To enhance student safety and improve the security of school campuses; 
 
2. To develop and promote positive relationships between students and law 

enforcement officers; 
 
3. To foster a better understanding of law enforcement officers in the 

community; 
 
4. To develop positive concepts of law enforcement; 
 
5. To identify and prevent delinquent behavior through counseling and referral; 
 
6. To provide assistance and support for victims of crime identified within the 

school setting, including abused children; 
 
7. To develop a better appreciation of citizenship, citizens’ rights, obligations, 

and responsibilities; 
 
8. To provide information about crime prevention; 
 
9. To enhance knowledge of the fundamental concepts and structure of the law; 
 
10. To provide materials and consultative assistance to teachers and parents on 

various law education topics. 
 

143143



9 

 

Exhibit II 

 

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 

PROGRAM GUIDELINES 

 

1. The School Resource Officer (SRO) is a CITY police officer and shall 
remain exclusively an employee of the CITY and responsible to the police 
department chain of command. 

 
2. Prior to the first day of school, the SRO will present to the Principal a 

written plan of action for the school year.  The plan should include the 
SRO’s work and activities schedule, and if appropriate, his/her work 
schedule and duties for District pre-planning and post-planning activities.  
This plan should also include an outline of classroom presentations that 
may be conducted by the SRO, as well as the number of instructional hours 
that the SRO may provide. 
 

3. Not less than one (1) time per semester, the SRO and Principal will meet 
to review the SRO’s plan of action and verbally discuss the SRO’s 
progress.  As necessary, additional meetings may be requested by either 
the Principal or the SRO to review the progress of the plan of action. 

 
4. The SRO may be asked to provide supplemental instruction at the 

discretion of the Principal, as qualified.  The Attorney General’s (SRO 
Basic and Advanced Training) philosophy with regard to in-class SRO 
presentations will be used as a guide. 

 
5. The SRO will engage with students in the following ways:  before school 

during student arrival, between class breaks and during lunch periods, and 
after school during student dismissal. 
 

6. The SRO shall report to his/her assigned school Principal daily.  The SRO 
shall be assigned specifically to the school during all regular school days.  
If the SRO is called away from the school for a portion of the school day, 
the SRO shall notify the Principal and Melbourne Beach Police 
Department supervision.  The Melbourne Beach Police Department, in 
conjunction with the BPS Office of District and School Security, will work 
to ensure appropriate coverage at the school is provided. 

 

144144



10 

 

7. If the SRO witnesses inappropriate or unacceptable activity on campus, 
he/she shall report the incident to the school administration and, as 
appropriate, take law enforcement action.  Both police department and 
school administrative procedures shall be followed.  In the event of a policy 
conflict, police department policy and procedure shall prevail.  The SRO 
shall avoid making arrests on school grounds except under exigent 
circumstances.  If arrest is necessary, the SRO will be called to execute 
proper law enforcement procedure.  If at all possible, the SRO should 
coordinate arrest and other operational strategies with the Principal. 

 
8. Should it become necessary for the SRO to conduct a formal law 

enforcement interview with a student, the interview should be coordinated 
with the Principal, parents shall be notified by school staff, and police 
department policy will be followed. 
 

9. The SRO is encouraged to attend parent, faculty, and staff meetings, as a 
part of the school administrative team, and to develop support and cultivate 
an understanding of the SRO program. 

 
10.  After consultation and approval of the Chief of Police or his/her designee, 

the Principal may request an SRO adjust his/her schedule and, as 
appropriate, may assign the SRO to duties after regular school hours, such 
as sponsoring extracurricular events, chaperoning field trips, or other after 
school activities.  Any such request shall not conflict with police 
department policy, the officer’s collective bargaining agreement, or result 
in overtime expenses to either the police department or the District.  These 
after-school activities will be under the supervision of school personnel. 
The District will not compensate the SRO in an overtime capacity.  (This 
does not include activities such as football games, basketball games, and 
school dances for which a separate contract of service is required). 

  
11.  All overtime shall be approved in advance by the SRO’s law enforcement 

supervisor.  Overtime expenses shall be borne by the CITY and not the 
District. 
 

12.  As determined by the police department, the SRO shall submit activity 
reports to be reviewed by the Principal and the Director of District and 
School Security. 
  

145145



11 

 

13.  The SRO has the authority to request a review of contract provisions after 
reasonable review and conferencing between the SRO and the Principal 
has occurred.  The following procedures should be followed: 

 
A. The SRO will request that a review of the contract provisions be 

completed stating the reasons for the request in writing. The request 
will be directed to the SRO’s law enforcement supervisor, with a 
copy being provided to the Principal.  A copy of that request must 
also be provided to the Chief of Police or his/her designee and the 
Director of the Office of District and School Security. 

 
B. Within a reasonable period of time after receiving the request for 

review from the SRO, the Director of the Office of District and 
School Security will meet with the Chief of Police, or his/her 
designee, to mediate or resolve any contract provision concerns that 
may exist between the SRO and the staff at his/her assigned school. 

 
1. With the approval of the Chief of Police or his/her designee, and 

the Director of the Office of District and School Security, the 
SRO, and specified members of the school staff, may be required 
to be present at a mediation meeting. 
 

2. If, within a reasonable amount of time after commencement of 
mediation, the contract provision concerns cannot be resolved or 
mediated, in the opinion of both the Chief of Police, and the 
Director of the Office of District and School Security, or 
designees thereof, a reasonable alternative action will be 
identified and agreed upon in writing.  

 
14.  If, in the opinion of the Principal, the SRO is no longer effective in his or 

her role as an SRO, the Principal may request the reassignment of the SRO 
from his/her duties at school.  In such cases, the following procedure should 
be followed: 
 

A. The Principal will meet with the SRO, and the SRO’s law 
enforcement supervisor and express the concerns and needs of the 
school.  The Principal will work collaboratively with the SRO and 
SRO’s law enforcement supervisor to clearly identify in writing their 
expectations, as well as the SRO’s agreed upon school related duties 

146146



12 

 

and responsibilities.  As appropriate, the SRO’s law enforcement 
supervisor may implement a written action plan. 
 

B. If, after reasonable review and discussion between the SRO, the 
SRO law enforcement supervisor and the Principal has occurred, in 
the opinion of the Principal the SRO’s effectiveness remains 
questionable, the Principal may request the SRO be reassigned from 
their position at their assigned school. 

 
C. The Principal shall contact the Director of District and School 

Security and request that the SRO be removed from the program at 
his/her school. 

 
15.  School Board employees shall not conduct an internal investigation of 

alleged improper conduct on the part of the SRO.  The Principal or any 
other BOARD employee shall report all allegations of improper conduct to 
either the SRO's law enforcement supervisor or to the police department 
Internal Affairs function.   

 
16.  At any time during the school year when students are not in school, or at 

the conclusion of the regular school year, the SRO shall be assigned other 
duties by the Chief of Police. 

 

147147



Town Commission Meeting  

Section:   New Business   

Meeting Date:  June 28, 2023 

From:   Elizabeth Mascaro, Town Manager 

Subject:  Suggested Changes to the LDC, Code of Ordinances   

 

Background Information: 

In an effort to allow our local business’s an opportunities to “do” more business and to help 

eliminate vacant land and vacant buildings on Ocean Avenue, I have been consulting with Kelly 

Hyvonen of Land Development Stradegies, on how to achieve these goals. The result of 

streamlining zones 6B, 7C and 8B and allowing more permitted uses, should be an increase in 

retail, dining and educational activities for our residents.  These changes also encourage more 

LSV parking and bike racks at business locations.  To achieve these results I recommend the 

following for your consideration and review.   

1. Remove the parking requirements for businesses.  Require 5 space minimum, 1 handicap, 1       

LSV, and 1 bike rack to promote a walkable, LSV community. 

2. Reduce the width of parking spaces from 10’ to 9’. 

3. Approved Outdoor seating, with 3 open sides and roof attachment.  The roof attachment for 

outdoor seating will not require setback compliance. 

4. Allow restaurants as a permitted use in zone 6B, 7C and 8B 

5. Remove setback requirements for 6B, 7C and 8B and use the Florida Building Code setback 

requirements. 

6. Allow microbrewery/micro distillery by special exception in zone 6B, 7C and 8B. 

7.  Allow non-academic instruction (ballet, karate, pottery class, art class etc.) in 6B, 7C and 8B 

8.  Allow personal services, professional offices, studios, clinics, health clubs and fitness studios 

in 6B and 7C. 

9.  Allow duplexes and townhouses in 8B. 

10.  In zone 6B, increase the maximum height from 35 to 36 feet to allow for 12 foot ceilings. 

 

148148



11.  To allow for roof pitch variations and not just flat roofs in the commercial area: 
HEIGHT OF BUILDING.  The distance measured from the highest of the minimum land elevations 

or structural member elevations, for construction, that are required by federal, state, or local 

government regulations based on flood protection, proximity to the coast, or other standards 

required to protect the health, safety, and welfare, to: 

(1)  For single-family residential: the highest point of the roof or building facade, 

whichever is higher, excluding attachments, and architectural features, that are 

specifically allowed by the Land Development Code.  

(2) For all other uses:  

a. The highest point of a flat roof; 

b. The deck line of a mansard roof; or 

a.c. The average height between the eaves and ridge for gable, hip, and gambrel 

roofs.  

 

 

 

Recommendation:  

Review the suggested changes.  Request changes be developed into an Ordinance to be 

presented to the Commission during a public meeting. Include updated definitions. 

 

 

 

Attachments:   

None 

 

149149



       Town Manager Report for June 2023 
 

 

1.  In May, Florida Power & Light Company (FPL) filed an additional fuel reduction request due to lower-

than-expected fuel costs for 2023. Today/On June 13, the Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) 

unanimously approved this rate decrease, which will take effect in July.  Typical business customer bills 

will decrease by 3% - 5%, depending on rate class. 

2.  Attended the Florida City, County Managers Association Meetings in Orlando.  Meeting with several 

of the business represented at the event-Veritas (Building Dept.) FL. Palm, FL Class, (Finance) Polco –

Community Engagement 

3. Attended Vision Zero meeting, discussed road safety measures being installed through Brevard and 

Orange County. 

5. Attended Brevard County Managers Meeting discussed lifeguard cost sharing with Brevard County. 

6. Attended Impact Fee Vote for Brevard County Library. Requested an accounting of funds available to 

Melbourne Beach.  Met with Director of Libraries, Wendi Jo Bost about landscaping the Library in town. 

7.  Attended meeting of City/Town island managers to discuss proposed lifeguard expenses proposed by 

Brevard County. 

8.  Tom Davis and I meet with 2 residents to discuss intersection flooding at Cherry and Cedar. Will 

contact Universal to have intersection scoped. 

9. Met with Frank Abate, County Manager;  Morris Richardson, County Attorney; Cliff Repperger, Town 

Attorney; Law Clerk, Karly Smith; and Finance Manager, Jennifer Kerr to discuss proposed cost 

participation between the Town and County for lifeguard services.  The County should make a proposal 

for FY2024-2025 lifeguard cost no earlier than August 2023. 

10. Met with Kelly Hyvonen for continued LDC changes. 

11.  Received $3,000 donation from Alan Ross of Rotary for soil and sod installation in the fall.   

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

150150



JUNE 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Lifeguard coverage 3/15/2023 6/28/2023  Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/17/2023 Town Manager – Fire Chief Gavin Brown is the liaison for this.  Right now the Brevard County Commission is 

looking into it 

3/15/2023 Added to Action Items – Fact finding related to funding from other municipalities, open a dialogue with 

Indialantic, reach out to US Lifesaving Association and Florida Beach Patrol to see what other heavy-traffic 

beaches are doing, make sure flag signs are up to date, options and costs to get a lifeguard at our beach 

year round. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO  

Evaluate street ends for 

suitability for kayak and 

paddleboard launch 

4/5/2023 6/28/2023  Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/17/2023 Public Works Director – Provided photos and spoke about the street ends First through Sixth which has large 

coquina rocks.  Fifth Ave is the best option. 

4/5/2023 Added to Action Items – Have Town Staff look at and evaluate the remaining street end accesses for 

suitability to add resources for kayaks and paddleboards 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

Parking Stickers 3/15/2023 6/28/2023  Wyatt Hoover  

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

4/19/2023 Town Manager – When people come in they are being told that the sticker is switching to a yearly sticker; 

the new sticker will be smaller and have a solid color with the year.  Bring a draft of the sticker in June. 

3/15/2023 Added to Action Items – Timing for when residents can start requesting the new sticker, look at alternate 

vendors for the sticker for higher quality, and how to differentiate the sticker from year to year. 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTOR ASSIGNED TO 

151151



JUNE 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

Sixth Ave boat ramp 

improvements 

8/17/2022 6/28/2023  Commissioner 

Runte  

Town Manager/ PW Director 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

3/15/2023 Put on the Town Commission Workshop 

2/15/2023 Tom Davis- met with Bowman Engineering at Sixth Ave boat ramp to get them to draw something up 

1/18/2023 Tom Davis – installed the geogrid and painted the wall, considering installing a kayak rack 

Commissioner Corey Runte – come up with future vision plans and get concept drawings/proposals to 

beautify it and address parking 

11/16/2022 Joyce Barton – Spoke about possible grant options 

Corey Runte – Research funding options 

Mayor Hoover – Start with fixing the seawall 

9/21/2022 Discussed under new business agenda item D. 

8/17/2022 Research what the exact issue is with parking that prevents the Town from getting grant money  

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE  CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

S.E.A. PROJECT 2/17/2021 7/19/2023  Mayor Hoover Town Manager 

Date Directions/Notes 

3/15/2023 Put on the Town Commission Workshop 

1/18/2023 Town Manager – Waiting on the concept drawings from Bowman.  

11/16/2022 TM – Next step is the concept drawings and sidewalks 

Corey Runte – Get a quote from the Town’s secondary civil engineering company 

9/21/2022 Waiting to hear back from BSE 

7/20/2022 TM – The workshop is scheduled for August 24th at 6:30 pm. 

6/15/2022 Town Manager – Spoke with Neal, 2 proposed dates in August, bring final date next month 

5/18/2022 Town Manager – additional parking spots are done, planting in Bicentennial Park was done, new poles along 

Ocean Ave are in the works.  The next big-ticket item is underground retention for stormwater 

Mayor Hoover – FDOT will be doing their portion of A1A fiscal year 2026. 

Schedule a public workshop in July. 

04/20/2022 Town will have a tent during Founders Day to discuss the S.E.A. Vision and get feedback from the residents.  

Waiting on estimates for new Town signs from Fast Signs.  Flowers planted at the very north end of Bi-

Centennial.  Flowers also planted around Ryckman House.  Established 4 more spaces for golf cart parking.   

152152



JUNE 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

2/16/2022 Town Manager Mascaro has met with the resident volunteer and they are currently working on the plan – 

she will provide another update again in March. Mayor Hoover suggested researching FDOT funding for 

Bicentennial Park and making it an entrance to the Town with a more impressive sign.  

1/17/2022 Vision statement was approved. An update will be given at February RTCM. 

12/15/2021 Update at January RTCM with Dix Height information.  

10/20/2021 Discussed during meeting in depth. Update at Nov. RTCM 

9/15/21 Currently working on RFP for gardening services and will present it at next RTCM as an agenda item. TM has 

not been able to make contact with Susan Hall  

8/18/2021 Added landscaping of Parks to Action item – and discussed RFP for landscaping services  
 

7/21/2021 Check in with Susan (include VM Barton) and update at August RTCM 
 

6/16/2021 Commission will no longer pursue FDOT grant but will continue research of other funding and grants. 
 

4/21/2021 Commission approved increasing payment. Grant will be awarded in June. Update July RTCM 
 

3/17/2021 VM Barton researched FDOT landscape grant. Commission approved $5,000 to begin landscape design 

process with an architectural designer. Discuss at April TCW and April RTCM. 

2/17/2021 Explore grants, etc. Discuss at TCW on March 3, 2021 

 

12/2/2020 

Mayor Hoover suggested they do the necessary research and reach out to landlords and business owners, 

starting with the area east of the traffic light on both sides of the road north and south – and then meet 

again to discuss in February. Plan for workshops with business owners and PNZ involvement 

 

12/16/2020 

Commissioner Walters requested the Town research a better microphone system, including the option of 

wireless microphones. He feels the sound quality of the current microphones is very poor. Dual timers were 

also requested by the Commission (we have one and need one more). 

ITEM OPENED DUE DATE CLOSED REQUESTER ASSIGNED TO 

Options and costs for live 

streaming 

9/21/2022 7/19/2023  Joyce Barton Town Clerk 

DATE DIRECTION/NOTES 

5/17/2023 Town Clerk – Working with a company that assists with RFPs and finding companies that do the work. 

3/15/2023 Town Clerk – Spoke with an individual who is familiar with audio/visual equipment and wanted to get a feel 

for the price range prior to spending time looking into products.  Commission decided to send this out for 

RFP. 

153153



JUNE 2023 TASK LIST 

 

 

1/18/2023 Town Clerk – Contacted several companies who advised not interested, cannot get the products, or didn’t 

respond.  Will start contacting individuals that use audio visual equipment rather than companies. 

11/16/2022 Town Clerk - contacted other municipalities to see how they stream and what they use and also reaching 

out to private companies.  This item ties into the upgrades to the audio system that was approved, but not 

done yet to make sure the systems are compatible. 

9/21/2022 Added to Action Items  

 

 

154154


	Agenda Packet Cover Page.pdf (p.1)
	Table of Contents.pdf (p.2)
	230628 RTCM Agenda.pdf (p.3-5)
	230517 RTCM Minutes.pdf (p.6-14)
	Site Plan 1 504 Fourth Ave.pdf (p.15-26)
	Site Plan 2 306 Avenue B.pdf (p.27-79)
	Volunteer App Hunsucker_EAB_board_volunteer_application[53].pdf (p.80)
	Proclamation 2023 SAFE BOATING Town of Melbourne Beach.pdf (p.81)
	Finance 1 May FY23 Finance Memo.pdf (p.82)
	Finance 2 May 2023 REVENUEs AND EXPENDITUREs.pdf (p.83-98)
	REVENUEANDEXPENDITURE

	PW MAY2023pw activities.pdf (p.99-100)
	Building Dept Permit List 2023_05.pdf (p.101-102)
	FD 1 FD Report 5-2023.pdf (p.103-104)
	FD 2 Incident Address May 2023.pdf (p.105)
	FD 3 Personnel Count May 2023.pdf (p.106)
	PD 1 May 2023.pdf (p.107-108)
	PD 2 Monthly Total.pdf (p.109-111)
	2023

	PD 3 3261_001.pdf (p.112)
	PD 4 Hinchman.pdf (p.113)
	PD 5 Sadler.pdf (p.114)
	Town Clerk Report.pdf (p.115)
	Boat Ramp 1 Bowman Concept Plan Boat Ramp.pdf (p.116)
	Boat Ramp 2 Boat Ramp Concept Drawing.pdf (p.117)
	Fire Dispatch 1 Melbourne Beach Dispatch 9th amend 2023.pdf (p.118)
	Fire Dispatch 2 Melbourne Beach Dispatch 9th approved amend 2023.pdf (p.119-121)
	Job Description 1 Agenda Item Cover for Chief of Police Job Description.pdf (p.122)
	Job Description 2 Chief of Police Job Description.pdf (p.123-125)
	Job Description 3 20100427 Police Chief ad.pdf (p.126)
	Limiting Submissions to P&Z 1.pdf (p.127-128)
	Limiting Submissions to P&Z 2 7A-137 Powers and Duties.pdf (p.129)
	Notices 1 Agenda Cover Page for Legal Notices MOU.pdf (p.130)
	Notices 2 Brevard County MOU for Posting Legal Notices on Websites Approved 05232023.pdf (p.131-136)
	SRO MOU 1.pdf (p.137)
	SRO MOU 2 Melbourne Beach SRO MOU 2023-24 5.22.23.pdf (p.138-149)
	LDC Ordinance Changes.pdf (p.150-151)
	Town Manager Memo June.pdf (p.152)
	Z Task List.pdf (p.153-156)

	Name: Kelli Hunsucker
	Home Phone: 
	Address: 320 1st Ave 
	Mobile: 215-285-6893
	Email: khunsucker@fit.edu
	Business Phone: 321-674-8437
	Business Name: FIT
	DOB: 
	Text1: EAB
	Text2: I have served on the EAB for over 10 years. 
	Experience:  PhD, MS, BS in Oceanography
	CheckBox11: Off
	CheckBox12: Off
	CheckBox13: Off
	CheckBox14: Off
	CheckBox15: Yes
	CheckBox16: Off
	CheckBox17: Off
	CheckBox18: Off
	CheckBox19: Off
	CheckBox20: Off
	CheckBox1: Yes
	CheckBox2: Off
	CheckBox3: Yes
	CheckBox4: Off
	CheckBox4_13: Off
	CheckBox4_21: Yes
	CheckBox4_22: Yes
	CheckBox4_23: Off
	CheckBox4_31: Yes
	CheckBox4_32: Off
	CheckBox4_33: Off
	CheckBox5: Yes


